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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CUYAHOGA COUNTY 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002 

Notes to Schedule of Federal Awards Receipts and Expenditures 
                                                                                                                  

1 -- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures (the Schedule) summarizes activity of the 
District=s federal award programs. The schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting.

2 -- FOOD DISTRIBUTION 

Nonmonetary assistance, such as food received from the U.S. Department of Agriculture, is reported in 
the Schedule at the fair market value of the commodities received and consumed.  Cash receipts from the 
U.S. Department of Agriculture are commingled with State grants.  It is assumed federal monies are 
expended first. At June 30, 2002, the District had no significant food commodities in inventory.

3 -- NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM

Federal monies received by the District for this program are commingled with State grants and local 
revenues.  It is assumed that federal monies are expended first. 

CFDA – Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance. 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Education 
North Olmsted City School District 
Cuyahoga County 
24100 Palm Drive 
North Olmsted, Ohio  44070 

We have audited the financial statements of the North Olmsted City School District, Cuyahoga County, 
Ohio, (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated 
May 23, 2003, wherein we noted the District adopted Government Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 34.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.  However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that 
we have reported to management of the District in a separate letter dated May 23, 2003.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial reporting 
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting.  Our 
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in 
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses.  A material weakness is a 
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not 
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to 
the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by 
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.  We noted no matters involving 
the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that do not require 
inclusion in this report, that we have reported to management of the District in a separate letter dated May 
23, 2003. 



North Olmsted City School District 
Cuyahoga County 
Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance and on Internal Controls  
     Required By Government Auditing Standards 
Page 2 
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This report is intended for the information and use of management, the Board of Education, and federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties.  
 
 
 
 
 
Betty Montgomery 
Auditor of State 
 
May 23, 2003 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Board of Education 
North Olmsted City School District 
Cuyahoga County 
24100 Palm Drive 
North Olmsted, Ohio  44070 

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the North Olmsted City School District, Cuyahoga County, Ohio, (the 
District) with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement  that are applicable to its major federal programs 
for the year ended June 30, 2002. The District’s major federal program is identified in the summary of 
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  Compliance 
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is 
the responsibility of the District’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the District’s 
compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
occurred with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the District’s compliance with those 
requirements. 

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that 
are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2002.  However, the results of our 
auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with those requirements that is required to 
be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2002-001.  We noted a certain instance of 
noncompliance that does not require inclusion in this report that we have reported to the management of 
the District in a separate letter dated May 23, 2003.  
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal 
programs.  In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over 
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and 
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.  

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the 
internal control that might be material weaknesses.  A material weakness is a condition in which the 
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low 
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected 
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.  We 
noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be 
material weaknesses.  We noted other matters involving the internal control over federal compliance that 
do not require inclusion in this report, that we have reported to management of the District in a separate 
letter dated May 23, 2003.  

 Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the North Olmsted City School District, Cuyahoga 
County, Ohio, (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our report 
thereon dated May 23, 2003, wherein we noted the District adopted Government Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 34.  Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole.  The accompanying schedule of federal awards expenditures is 
presented for additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

This report is intended for the information and use of the management, Board of Education, and federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

Betty Montgomery
Auditor of State 

May 23, 2003  
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CUYAHOGA COUNTY 

 JUNE 30, 2002

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 ' .505

  1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR=S RESULTS

(d)(1)(i) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified

(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material control 
weakness conditions reported at the 
financial statement level (GAGAS)? 

No

(d)(1)(ii) Were there any other reportable 
control weakness conditions reported 
at the financial statement level 
(GAGAS)?

No

(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material non-
compliance at the financial statement 
level (GAGAS)? 

No

(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material internal 
control weakness conditions reported 
for major federal programs? 

No

(d)(1)(iv) Were there any other reportable 
internal control weakness conditions 
reported for major federal programs? 

No

(d)(1)(v) Type of Major Programs= Compliance 
Opinion

Unqualified

(d)(1)(vi) Are there any reportable findings 
under ' .510? 

Yes

(d)(1)(vii) Major Programs (list): Special Education Cluster: Title VI-B 
CFDA #84.027 and Preschool CFDA 
#84.173

(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs Type A: > $ 300,000 
Type B: all others

(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? Yes

 2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS  

None.
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CUYAHOGA COUNTY 

 JUNE 30, 2002 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 ' .505 

(Continued)

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS 

Title VI-B

Finding Number 2002-001

CFDA Title and Number Education of All Handicapped (Title VI-B) / 84.027 

Federal Award Number / Year 044529-6B-SF / 1999 

Federal Agency U.S. Department of Education 

Pass-Through Agency Ohio Department of Education 

Questioned Cost

Section 421(b) of GEPA (20 USC 1225(b)); 34 CFR sections 76.704 through 76.707 requires LEAs to obligate 
funds during the 27 months, extending from July 1 of the fiscal year for which the fund was appropriated 
through September 30 of the second following fiscal year.  This maximum period includes a 15 month period 
of initial availability plus a 12 month period for carryover.  In addition, the Ohio Department of Education 
requires obligations to be liquidated prior to submitting the Final Expenditure Report, which must be filed no 
later than 60 days after the end of the project period (ODE Federal Fiscal Report Procedures #1). 

During fiscal year 2002, the District disbursed $432,844 in Federal Funds related to the Special Education 
Cluster received via a pass-through agreement with the Ohio Department of Education.  However, certain 
disbursements were not made within the award’s period of availability.  The District disbursed $82,079 from 
the Title VI-B portion of the Special Education Cluster on September 21, 2001.  These expenditures were 
made to the Lakewood Board of Education for the purpose of providing special education instruction to eligible 
District students.  However, the expenditures were for services which were performed during fiscal year 1999, 
related to the 1998-99 Special Education Cluster and required liquidation by November 30, 1999.  In addition, 
there was no indication that an extension of the available period had been requested or received. 

Failure to liquidate obligations within the time limits established by Federal regulations and/or the grant 
agreement could subject the District to fines, penalties, and/or loss of federal funding. 

We recommend the District contact and rectify this issue with the Ohio Department of Education.  Also, we 
recommend the District review grant project balances and expenditure documentation, prior to the expiration of 
the availability period to determine if any unpaid obligations exist.  If it appears obligations will not be liquidated 
within the required time frame, the District should submit a written request for an extension.  We also 
recommend that the District closely monitor cash requests and subsequent expenditures to help ensure funds 
are spent within the grant’s period of availability. 
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CUYAHOGA COUNTY 

JUNE 30, 2002 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 ' .315 (c)

Finding
Number Planned Corrective Action 

Anticipated 
Completion

Date 
Responsible

Contact Person 
2002-001 District will contact the Ohio Department 

of Education.  In the future, the District will 
review grant project balances and 
expenditure documentation, prior to 
expiration of the availability period, to 
determine if any unpaid obligations exist.  
If obligations will not be liquidated within 
the required time frame, the District will 
submit a written request for an extension.  
The District will closely monitor cash 
requests and subsequent expenditures to 
ensure that grant monies are spent within 
the period of availability. 

June 30, 2003 Rob Matson, 
Treasurer 
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North Olmsted City School District
24100 Palm Drive
North Olmsted, Ohio 44070

May 23, 2003

Members of the North Olmsted Board of Education:

We are pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the North
Olmsted City School District for the year ended June 30, 2002.  This CAFR includes an opinion
from the State Auditor and conforms to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as applicable
to governmental entities.  Responsibility for the accuracy of the data presented and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the School
District.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material
respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results
of operations of the School District.  This report will provide the taxpayers of the North Olmsted City
School district with comprehensive financial data in a format that will enable them to gain an
understanding of the School District's financial affairs.  Copies will be made available to the North
Olmsted Public Library, major taxpayers, financial rating services, local bankers and other
interested parties.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections as follows:

1. The Introductory Section, which contains a Table of Contents, Letter of Transmittal, List of
Principal Officials, an Organizational Chart of the School District, and a list of awards including
the GFOA Certificate of Achievement and the ASBO Certificate of Excellence.

2. The Financial Section which begins with the Independent Accountant's Report and includes the
Management's Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements and Notes to the
Basic Financial Statements that provide an overview of the School District's financial position
and operating results, the Combining Statements by Fund Type, and other schedules that
provide detailed budgetary information.

3. The Statistical Section presents social and economic data, financial trends and demographic
information of the North Olmsted City School District.

SCHOOL DISTRICT

The North Olmsted City School District is located in western Cuyahoga County, approximately 17
miles southwest of downtown Cleveland.  The School District encompasses the entire City of North
Olmsted, a community with a population of approximately 34,000.  The City is primarily residential
with a significant commercial tax base of retail businesses.
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The School District was chartered in 1831 by the Ohio State legislature two years after the name
"Olmstead" was assigned to the area.  The region was named after Aaron Olmstead, an investor
and Revolutionary War soldier who purchased land in the area in 1794. The exact time and reason
for changing to the current spelling is unclear from the historical records.  In 1837, under the
auspices of the Office of the State Superintendent of Common School Education, Township
Trustees were authorized to levy compulsory taxes for the support of public education.  In 1853
State laws were enacted to create locally elected boards of education to govern local school
districts.  Today, the North Olmsted Board of Education is comprised of five members, elected at
large, with staggered four year terms.

Statutorily, the School District operates under standards prescribed by the Ohio State Board of
Education as provided in Section 3301.07(D) of the Ohio Revised Code, to provide educational
services authorized by charter and further mandated by State and Federal agencies.  Under Ohio
law, the School District is a separate and distinct unit of government with its own taxing authority.

THE REPORTING ENTITY

North Olmsted City School District has reviewed its reporting entity definition in order to ensure
conformance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 14, "the
Financial Reporting Entity".  In evaluating how to define the School District for financial reporting
purposes, management has considered all agencies, departments and organizations making up
the North Olmsted City School District (the primary government) and its potential component units.

Excluded from the reporting entity because they are fiscally independent of the School District are
the City of North Olmsted, the Cuyahoga County Public Library, the North Olmsted City Schools
Education Foundation, and the Parent Teacher Association.  A complete discussion of the School
District's reporting entity is provided in Note 1 to the general purpose financial statements.

The School District is a member of the Lake Erie Educational Computer Association, the Polaris
Career Center, the North Olmsted City Schools Education Foundation and the Ohio Schools
Council Association.  The relationship of these jointly governed organizations with the School
District is described in more detail in Note 18 of the basic financial statements.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The District's financial position stabilized with the passage in May 2002 of a 7.9 mill operating levy.
This levy is estimated to generate $6.4 million dollars in additional revenue annually.  The
collection of this revenue will be phased in over a two year period beginning next year.  Based
upon current financial projections, the School District will have adequate operating revenue for the
next three to four years before the School District will be required to raise additional revenue
through the passage of a new operating levy.

But why is it necessary for schools to periodically seek additional funds from the taxpayer?  The
answer to this question is based upon the nature of school funding in Ohio, which severely restricts
the growth in operating revenues.

The District's primary source of operating revenues (66.5 percent) comes from the levying of real
estate taxes on residential and commercial property located within the community.  The City of
North Olmsted is a mature community with limited vacant land available for new commercial or
residential development.  Increases in the School District's tax base come primarily from
reevaluation of the taxable value of real estate by the County Auditor every three years and is
illustrated in the graph on the following page.
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Unfortunately, current state law prevents school districts in Ohio from receiving additional tax
revenue when the County Auditor reevaluates property values.  In 1976, the Ohio General
Assembly passed House Bill 920.  This law requires the tax rate to be lowered by the same
percentage property values are increased by the County Auditor's reevaluation.  Prior to the
passage of the May 2002 operating levy, North Olmsted City Schools levied 63.3 mills of taxes to
fund its operation.  House Bill 920 lowered the effective millage to 26.5 mills for residential
properties and 30.9 mills for commercial property and it illustrated in the graph below.

In effect, House Bill 920 removes inflationary revenue growth in revenue and requires school
districts throughout Ohio to periodically place tax issues on the ballot for voter approval in order to
receive additional revenue to offset rising costs.

1.2% 1.2%

14.2%

0.8%

3.1%

9.8%

1.5% 1.3%

11.2%

0.3%
1.0%

3.0%

5.0%

7.0%

9.0%

11.0%

13.0%

15.0%

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

Calendar Year

Change in Real Estate Taxable Value

Source: County Auditor 

63.3

26.5
30.9

20

30

40

50

60

70

M
ill

ag
e

Voted
Millage

Taxable
Residential

Millage

Taxable
commerical

Millage

Effects of House Bill 920

Source: County Auditor 



viii

The School District also faces a future loss of revenue from the collection of tangible personal
property taxes.  This tax is assessed on the value of inventory and equipment owned by
businesses located within the community and represents approximately 9.3% of General Fund
revenues received in fiscal 2002.

In June 1999, the Ohio General Assembly passed House Bill 284, which will phase-out the
inventory portion of the tax assessment.  The phase-out period will be over 25 years beginning in
calendar 2002 at an annual rate of approximately 4%.  Once fully implemented, the School
District's operating revenue will be reduced $2,4000,000 dollars annually.

Another significant source of revenue for the School District is money received from the State of
Ohio through the State Foundation Program.  During fiscal year 2002, the School District received
$7,549,000 under this program.  However, the Foundation Program has been declining as a major
source of operating revenue for the North Olmsted City School District.  In fiscal year 1991, the
Foundation Program provided over 26 percent of the School District's General Fund operating
revenue.  Today, the Foundation Program accounts for only 19.9% of the School District's General
Fund operating revenue.  The formula used to allocate Foundation Program funds among school
districts in Ohio redistributes these funds from school districts with a large real estate and personal
property tax base, such as North Olmsted, to school districts with a smaller tax base.  It is
anticipated that money received from the State of Ohio will continue to decline as a major source of
revenue as the financial burden of funding public education shifts to the local taxpayer.

MAJOR INITIATIVES - FISCAL YEAR 2002

The single most important initiative accomplished during the year was the passage of a 7.9 mill
operating levy in May 2002 after 3 previous failures.  The passage of this levy will stabilize the
District's financial position and provide adequate operating funds for the next three to four years.

During the year, the School District continued its work on development and implementation of its
Strategic Continuous Improvement Plan to significantly improve student academic achievements,
enhance curriculum development, integrate new technology and increase fiscal responsibility.

The Board of Education completed a comprehensive facility study to identify the long term needs of
the School District.  The preliminary findings of the study have identified the need to possibly
construct a new middle school or renovate the existing building.  The Board of Education is
currently reviewing the recommendations of the study and will consider the appropriate course of
action within the year.  Implementation of the study's findings would require the passage of a bond
levy.

In an effort to ease overcrowded conditions in the elementary and middle schools and enhance
instructional programming, the Board of Education reactivated Chestnut Elementary School and
realigned grade levels within the elementary and middle school buildings.  The grade realignment
removed the sixth grade from the Middle School and established four primary buildings to serve
pupils in kindergarten though third grade, and three intermediate buildings to serve pupils in grades
four through six.

The North Olmsted City Schools continue to receive local, state and national recognition for
academic excellence.  Cleveland Magazine ranked North Olmsted City Schools in the top ten for
quality of education in the magazine's evaluation of 64 area school districts.  The District received
the prestigious Gold Medal Award for Excellence from the Greater Cleveland Growth Association in
conjunction with Expansion Management.  Finally, the District was one of only 70 schools across
the country to receive the national "Leader School" Award in Washington, D.C.
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The School District completed a review of the math curriculum that focused on a realignment of
instruction and assessment.  The review as based on the Mathematics Academic Content
Standards released by the Ohio Department of Education.

The Administration continues the development of numerous cost containment and revenue
enhancement programs to manage District funds in an efficient and economic manner.  These
programs include zero based budgeting techniques and cost benefit analysis methods similar to
those employed by the business community.  To date, these programs have yielded over $5.0
million in savings.  These programs have allowed the District to maintain one of the lowest
instructional costs per pupil in Cuyahoga County.

Based upon the Ohio Department of Education "District Report Cards" for the year ended June 30,
2002, the North Olmsted City Schools cost per pupil expenditure was the 23 lowest among the 31
school districts in Cuyahoga County.

During the year, the School District personnel implemented a compliance audit on the filing of
personal property tax returns reported by businesses located in the community.  The audit
identified a number of major taxpayers filing tax returns in the wrong tax district and allowed the
School District to recover over $350,000 in additional tax revenue.

The Administration began a complete review of its printing department.  Preliminary findings from
the study indicate a potential saving of approximately $500,00 could be realized over the next five
years if implemented.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Accounting and Budgetary Control

In developing the School District's accounting system, much consideration was given to the
adequacy of internal accounting controls.  Internal accounting controls are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial
statements and maintaining accountability for assets.  The concept of reasonable assurance is
based on the assumption that the cost of internal accounting controls should not exceed the
benefits expected to be derived from their implementation.

The School District utilizes a fully automated accounting system as well as an automated system of
control for fixed assets and payroll.  These systems, coupled with the manual auditing of each
voucher prior to payment, ensure that the financial information generated is both accurate and
reliable.

At the beginning of each fiscal year, the Board of Education adopts a temporary appropriation
measure. A permanent appropriation measure is subsequently adopted upon receipt from the
County Auditor of an amended certificate of estimated resources based on final assessed values
and tax rates, which is usually within the first three months of the fiscal year.

Annual appropriations may not exceed the County Budget Commission's official estimate of
resources.  The County Auditor must certify that the Board of Education's appropriation measures,
including any supplements or amendments, do not exceed the amount set forth in the latest of
those official estimates.

All disbursements and transfers of cash between funds require appropriation authority from the
Board.  The legal level of appropriations is at the fund and object level for the General Fund and
Debt Service Fund and at the fund level of all other funds.   All budgets are maintained at the object
account level within a function and fund.  All purchase order requests must be approved by either
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the Superintendent or Assistant Superintendent and certified by the Treasurer; necessary funds are
then encumbered and purchase orders released to vendors.  Those requests that exceed the
available appropriation are rejected until additional appropriations are secured.

The accounting system used by the School District provides interim financial reports which detail
year-to-date expenditures and encumbrances versus the original appropriation plus any additional
appropriations made to date.  Administrators and school principals are furnished monthly reports
showing the status of the budget accounts for which they are responsible.  In addition, an on-line
inquiry system is available at each cost center site.

The basis of accounting and the various funds utilized by the North Olmsted City Schools are fully
described in Note 2 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.  Additional information on the
School District's budgetary accounting can also be found in Note 2.

Financial Condition

This is the first year the School District has prepared financial statements following GASB
Statement No. 34, "Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments".  GASB 34 creates new basic financial statements for reporting on
the School District's financial activities as follows:

Government-wide financial statements - These statements are prepared on an accrual basis of
accounting, which is similar to the basis of accounting followed by businesses.  The government-
wide statements distinguish between those activities of the school district that are governmental
and those that are considered business-type activities.

Fund financial statements - These statements present information for individual major funds
rather than by fund type.  Non-major funds are presented in total in one column.  Governmental
funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting and include a reconciliation to the governmental
activities accrual information presented in the government-wide financial statements.  Proprietary
and fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting.

Statement of budgetary comparisons - These statements present comparisons of actual
information to the legally adopted budget.  The budgetary basis as provided by law is based upon
accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances.

As part of this new reporting model, management is responsible for preparing a Management
Discussion and Analysis of the School District. This discussion follows the Independent
Accountant's Report and provides an assessment of the School District's finances for 2002 and a
discussion of current issues affecting the School District in the future.  Because that discussion
focuses on major funds, other non-major funds are discussed briefly in this letter.

Financial Highlight - Internal Service Fund

The Internal Service Fund accounts for all activities in which the School District provides goods
and/or services to other governmental agencies or to students on a cost plus reimbursement basis.
During fiscal year 2002, only one activity, the Self-Insurance Fund, is reported under this category.
The Self-Insurance Fund accounts for the revenue and expenses associated with the School
District's medical, prescription drug and dental plan provided to its employees.

As of June 30, 2002, the Self-Insurance Fund's liabilities exceed its assets by $972,825; an
increase of $233,520 from June 30, 2001.  Approximately $573,000 of this deficit represents the
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General Fund's obligation to provide benefits to it employees during July and August 2003.  This
amount will be collected from the General Fund upon submission of medical, prescription drug and
dental claims from providers during fiscal year 2003.

The District is concerned with spiraling healthcare costs.  As illustrated in the graph below,
healthcare costs have increased 66.1% in the past three years.  The dramatic reduction in costs
obtained in fiscal years 1997 and 1998 from the redesign of the District's medical plans have been
off-set by rising healthcare costs.  The District will continue in its efforts to contain rising healthcare
costs.

Financial Highlight - Fiduciary Fund

Included in this category are Agency Funds used to account for assets held by the School District
in a trustee capacity.  Agency Funds typically consist of student managed activities.  Total assets in
these funds at June 30, 2002 were $79,362.

Cash Management

The Board has developed and implemented a cash management program to maximize investment
earnings while maintaining the security of principal and meeting the daily cash flow demands of the
School District.  The program utilizes a remote disbursement bank arrangement combined with an
on-line control disbursement system that enables the Board to maintain minimum account
balances.  For the year ended June 30, 2002, the District's investment earnings totaled $660,917
of which $566,962 was credited to the General Fund.
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Cash not needed for immediate use during the year was invested in the State Treasurer's Asset
Reserve of Ohio (STAR) Program administered by the Office of the Treasurer of the State of Ohio
and Fifth Third Bank's Liquid Asset Management (LAM) Account.

STAR Ohio is an investment pool offered to political subdivisions of the State of Ohio for the
investment of funds.  STAR Ohio's investment portfolio consists of securities authorized by the
Ohio Revised Code including instruments of the Federal government and its agencies,
collateralized  certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements.  This investment pool offers daily
liquidity of all funds and no minimum balance requirements.  The Fifth Third Bank LAM Account is
an investment portfolio managed by Fifth Third Bank.  The account is used to invest interim monies
in securities with a maturity of one to two years.

Protection of the School District's deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation as well as by qualified securities pledged by the financial institution holding the assets.
By law, financial institutions may establish a collateral pool to cover all public deposits.  The market
value of the pooled collateral must equal at least 105 percent of the public funds on deposit.

Risk Management

The School District provides employees and their dependents a comprehensive medical,
prescription drug, dental and eye care program.  The program is self-insured and an internal
service fund is maintained to account for and finance this program.  Medical Mutual of Ohio
administers the plan and reviews all claims.  The District limits its liability for medical claims by
maintaining a specific stop-loss insurance threshold of $75,000 per individual.

All employees of North Olmsted City School district are covered by a blanket bond, while certain
individuals in policy-making roles are covered by separate, higher limit bond coverage.

The School District contracts with Nationwide Insurance Company for property and liability
insurance coverage.  The limits on professional liability coverage are $2 million per occurrence and
a $5 million aggregate limit with a $1 million supplemental umbrella policy.  Automobile liability has
a $3 million combined single limit with a $1 million supplemental umbrella policy.  Settled claims
have not exceeded this commercial coverage in the past three years.

The School District participates in the Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation plan and pays an
annual premium based on a rate per $100 of salaries.  The School District is a member of the Ohio
Association of School Business Officials Workers' Compensation Group Rating Program and
qualifies for a 75 percent reduction in the workers' compensation premium.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

State statutes and federal regulations require the School District to be subjected to periodical
examinations by an independent auditor.  An annual audit serves to maintain and strengthen the
School District's accounting and budgetary controls.  Independent Auditor Betty Montgomery,
Auditor of State, was selected to render an opinion on the School District's financial statements for
the year ended June 30, 2002.  The opinion appears at the beginning of the financial section of this
report.

Pursuant to statute, the State prescribes a uniform accounting system to standardize accounting
classification and financial reporting for all school governments in Ohio. North Olmsted City School
District adopted and has been in conformance with this system beginning with its financial report
for the 1979 year.
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AWARDS

GFOA Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the North Olmsted City School
District for it Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2001.  The
Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in the area of governmental financial
reporting.  In 1985, North Olmsted City School District was the first school district in Ohio to receive
this award and has received the award for seventeen consecutive years.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, whose contents
conform to program standards.  Such a report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.  A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of
one year.  We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement
Program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.

ASBO International Certificate of Excellence

The School District received the Association of School Business Officials (ASBO) International
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2001.  The Certificate of Excellence in Financial
Reporting Program was designed by ASBO International to enable school business officials to
achieve a high standard of financial reporting.

Since its inception in 1972, the program has gained the distinction of being a prestigious national
award recognized by: accounting professionals; underwriters; securities analysts; bond rating
agencies; state and federal agencies.  A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one
year.  We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement
Program requirements, and we are submitting it to ASBO.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The publication of this report significantly increases the accountability of the School District to the
taxpayers of North Olmsted City School District.  This accomplishment would not have been
possible without the support and efforts of the staff of the Treasurer's office, administrators and
employees of the School District.  Assistance from the County Auditor's office staff and outside
agencies made possible the fair presentation of statistical data.  In addition, special appreciation is
expressed to Robbie DeCoske from the firm of Costin & Company, CPA, Inc. and Vera Brewer,
Communications Manager, for the advice and guidance rendered to the production of this report.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert J. Matson, CPA Dr. Norma L. Conner,
Chief Financial Officer Superintendent of Schools



xiv

North Olmsted City School District
Principal Officials

June 30, 2002

Board of Education

Mr. Donald Frazier President
Mrs. Claire Hayes Vice-President
Mrs. Joanne DiCarlo Member
Mr. Thomas Herbster Member
Mr. Michael Raig Member

Administration

Dr. Norma L. Conner Superintendent
Dr. Douglas A. Sebring Assistant Superintendent
Mr. Joseph Hruby Assistant Superintendent
Mr. Robert J. Matson, CPA Treasurer
Mr. Leonard Frick Director of Business Services
Mr. Gary Novak Director of Personnel
Mrs. Sharon Humphrey Director of Pupil Services
Mrs. Vera Brewer Communications Manager



xv



xvi



xvii



xviii

This page intentionally left blank.



 

1 

 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT 
 
 

Board of Education 
North Olmsted City School District 
Cuyahoga County 
24100 Palm Drive 
North Olmsted, Ohio  44070 

 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the North Olmsted City School District, Cuyahoga 
County, Ohio (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002, which collectively comprise the 
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the District’s management.  Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit.  

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.   

 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the North Olmsted City School District, Cuyahoga County, Ohio, as of June 30, 2002, 
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, and the respective 
budgetary comparison for the General Fund thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
As described in Note 3, during the year ended June 30, 2002, the District implemented a new financial 
reporting model, as required by the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 
No. 34, Basic Financial StatementsB and Management=s Discussion and AnalysisB for State and Local 
Governments.  

 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 23, 2003, 
on our consideration of the District=s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.  That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in 
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is 
supplementary information the Governmental Accounting Standards Board requires.  We have applied 
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods 
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.  However, we did not audit 
the information and express no opinion on it.   
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We conducted our audit to form opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
District=s basic financial statements.  The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund 
statements and schedules and statistical tables are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
We subjected the combining and individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, this information is fairly 
stated in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.  We did not 
subject the introductory section and statistical tables to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on them.  
 
 
 
 

 
Betty Montgomery 
Auditor of State 

 
May 23, 2003 
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North Olmsted City School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
Unaudited

The management discussion and analysis of North Olmsted City School District's financial
performance provides an overall review of the School District's financial activities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2002.  The intent of this management discussion and analysis is to look at the
School District's financial performance as a whole.  Readers should also review the transmittal
letter, financial statements and notes to those respective statements to enhance their
understanding of the School District's financial performance.

Financial Highlights

Key Financial Highlights for 2002 are as follows:

In total, net assets increased by $1,650,058.

Revenues for governmental activities totaled $45,488,547 in 2002.  Of this total, 92.1 percent
consisted of General revenues while Program revenues accounted for the remaining balance of 7.9
percent.

Program expenses totaled $43,838,489.  Instructional expenses made up 58.5 percent of this total
while support services accounted for 34.6 percent.  Other expenses rounded out the remaining 6.9
percent.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes pertaining to those
statements.  These statements are organized so the reader can understand North Olmsted City
School District as a financial whole, or complete operating entity.  The statements then proceed to
provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of
the whole School District, presenting both an aggregate and longer-term view of those finances.
Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail.  For governmental funds, these
statements explain how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future
spending.  The fund financial statements also look at the School District's most significant funds
with all other non-major funds presented in total in one column.  In the case of North Olmsted City
School District, the general fund is the most significant fund.

Reporting the School District as a Whole

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains all the funds used by the School district to provide programs and
activities, the view of the School District as a whole considers all financial transactions and asks
the question, "How did we do financially during 2002?"  The Statement of Net Assets and
Statement of Activities answers this question.  These statements include all assets and liabilities
using the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the accounting used by most private-sector
companies.  Accrual accounting takes into account all of the current year's revenues and expenses
regardless of when cash is received or paid.
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North Olmsted City School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
Unaudited

These two statements report the School District's net assets and changes in those net assets.  This
change in net assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the District as a whole, the
financial position of the School District has improved or diminished.  The causes of this change
may be the result of many factors, some financial, some not.  Non-financial factors include the
School District's performance, demographic and socioeconomic factors and willingness of the
community to support the School District.  On the other hand, financial factors may include the
School District's financial position, liquidity and solvency, fiscal capacity and risk and exposure.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the School District is classified into
governmental activities.  All of the School District's programs and services are reported here
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance, pupil transportation, food
service operation and extracurricular activities.

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the School District's major fund begins on page 11.  Fund financial reports provide
detailed information about the School District's major funds.  The School District uses many funds
to account for a multitude of financial transactions.  However, these fund financial statements focus
on the School District's most significant funds.  The School District's major governmental fund is
the General fund.

Governmental Funds

All of the School District's activities are reported as governmental funds, which focus on how
money flows into and out of these funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending in future periods.  These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash.  The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the
School District's general government operations and the basic services it provides.  Governmental
fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance educational programs.  The relationship (or differences)
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

The School District as a Whole

The Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the School District as a whole.  Table 1
provides a summary of the School District's net assets for 2002 compared in 2001:
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North Olmsted City School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
Unaudited

Table 1
Net Assets

Governmental Activities

2002 2001
Assets
Current and Other Assets $44,615,258 $42,826,676
Capital Assets, Net 12,533,580 12,698,587

Total Assets 57,148,838 55,525,263

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 31,138,452 31,231,050
Long Term Liabilities
     Due Within One Year 574,930 450,928
     Due in More Than One Year 3,135,994 3,193,881

Total Liabilities 34,849,376 34,875,859

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets,net of Related Debt 12,533,580 12,698,587
Restricted for:
     Capital Projects 1,016,209 508,063
     Other Purposes 551,020 425,876
Unrestricted 8,198,653 7,016,878

Total Net Assets $22,299,462 $20,649,404
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North Olmsted City School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
Unaudited

Governmental Activities

Total assets increased by $1,623,575.  The majority of this increase can be attributed primarily to
an increase in taxes receivable of $2.8 million offset by a reduction in cash and funds due from
other governments of $900,000.  The increase in taxes receivable is due to the passage of a new
7.9 mill operating levy in May 2002.  Reduction in cash and funds due from other governments
represents normal year to year fluctuations caused by the timing of payments.

By comparing assets and liabilities, one can see the overall position of the School District has
improved as evidenced by the increase in net assets of $1,650,058.

The vast majority of revenue supporting all Governmental Activities is General revenues.  General
revenue totaled $41,911,415 or 92.1 percent of the total revenue.  The most significant portion of
the General revenues is local property tax.  The remaining amount of revenue received was in the
form of program revenues, which equated to $3,577,132 or only 7.9 percent of total revenue.

Table 2 summarizes the revenue, expenses and the changes in net assets for fiscal year 2002.
Since this is the first year the School District has prepared financial statements following GASB
Statement 34, revenue and expense comparisons to fiscal year 2001 are not available.  In future
years, when prior year information is available, a comparative analysis of government-wide data
will be presented.
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North Olmsted City School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
Unaudited

Table 2
Governmental Activities

2002
Revenues
Program Revenues
     Charges for Services and Sales $1,810,182
     Operating Grants, Interest and Contributions 1,725,183
     Capital Grants and Contributions 41,767

Total Program Revenues 3,577,132

General Revenue
     Property Taxes 30,257,653
     Grants and Entitlements 10,659,176
     Investment Earnings 660,300
     Miscellaneous 334,286

Total General Revenues 41,911,415

Total Revenues 45,488,547

Program Expenses
Instruction:
     Regular 19,996,444
     Special 4,279,749
     Vocational 682,107
     Adult/Continuing 148,210
     Other Instruction 537,666

Support Services:
     Pupil 3,012,740
     Instructional Staff 1,539,103
     Board of Education 121,763
     Administration 3,089,415
     Fiscal Services 855,813
     Business 306,056
     Operation and Maintenance 3,878,826
     Pupil Transportation 1,696,739
     Central Services 683,277

Operation of Non-Instructional Services:
     Food Service Operation 1,446,434
     Community Services 508,363
     Extracurricular Activities 956,213
     Interest 99,571

Total Program Expenses 43,838,489

Increase in Net Assets $1,650,058
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
Unaudited

The School District has carefully planned its financial future by forecasting its revenues and
expenditures over the next five years.  In May of 2002, the School District successfully passed a
7.9 mill operating levy that is estimated to generate $6.4 million dollars in additional revenue per
year.  Collection will begin the second half of fiscal year 2003.  The full effect of this levy will be
realized in fiscal year 2004.  Based upon the current five year financial forecast this additional
income will provide adequate operating funds for the School District over the next three to four
years.

Although the School District relies heavily upon local property taxes to support its operations, the
School District does actively solicit and receive additional grant and entitlement funds to help offset
some operating costs.

Five Year Financial Forecast
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
Unaudited

Approximately 58.5 percent of the School District's budget is used to fund instructional expenses.
Additional supporting services for pupils, staff and business operations encompass an additional
34.6 percent.  The remaining program expenses of 6.9 percent, are budgeted to facilitate other
obligations of the School District, such as the food service program, numerous extracurricular
activities and debt service.

Expenses for the year were approximately $725,000 or 1.8% under budget projections.  The
savings results from numerous reductions in programs and cost containment measures
implemented by the Board of Education to conserve operating funds after the third defeat of an
operating levy in February, 2002.  With the passage of a 7.9 mill operating levy in May 2002, the
Board of Education has directed the Administration to draft a plan to reduce operating expenses
approximately $1.5 million annually.

During the past five years, the Administration has implemented numerous cost containment and
revenue enhancement programs to manage District funds in an efficient and economic manner.
These programs include zero based budgeting techniques and cost benefit analysis methods
similar to those employed by the business community.  To date, these programs have yielded over
$5.0 million in savings.  The significance of this accomplishment can best be illustrated in Table 3,
comparing our cost per pupil expenditures with those of neighboring school districts.

Program Expenses

Instruction
58.5%

Other
6.9%

Support 
Services

34.6%

Source: District  Financial Records 
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
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Based upon the Ohio Department of Education "2003 District Report Cards", the North Olmsted
City School's cost per pupil expenditure was the 23rd lowest among the 31 school districts in
Cuyahoga County.

Table 3
Cost per Pupil as of June 30, 2002

Ranking in
Cost Cuyahoga County

School District Per Pupil (31 Districts)

Bay Village $9,622 17
Berea 9,514 18
Fairview Park 9,957 14
Lakewood 9,670 16
North Olmsted 9,076 23
Olmsted Falls 8,610 27
Rocky River 9,236 21
Strongsville 8,815 26
Westlake 10,125 13

Source: Ohio Department of Education

The Statement of Activities shows the total net cost of program services.  Table 4 shows the total
cost of services for governmental activities and the net cost of those services.  It identifies the cost
of these services supported by tax revenue and unrestricted State entitlements. 

Table 4
Governmental Activities

Total Cost Net Cost
Of Services Of Services

               2002                2002
Governmental Activities
Instruction:
     Regular $19,996,444 ($19,404,473)
     Special 4,279,749 (3,593,291)
     Vocational 682,107 (630,765)
     Adult/Continuing 148,210 (75,504)
     Other Instruction 537,666 (537,666)
Support Services:
     Pupil 3,012,740 (2,899,255)
     Instructional Staff 1,539,103 (1,535,049)
     Board of Education 121,763 (121,763)
     Administration 3,089,415 (3,089,073)
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Table 4
Governmental Activities

(Continued)

     Fiscal Services 855,813 (855,813)
     Business 306,056 (298,464)
     Operation & Maintenance 3,878,826 (3,876,962)
     Pupil Transportation 1,696,739 (1,602,091)
     Central Services 683,277 (634,367)

Operation of Non-Instructional:
     Food Service Operation 1,446,434 (141,617)
     Community Services 508,363 (5,566)

Extra curricular Activities 956,213 (860,067)
Debt Service - Interest 99,571 (99,571)

Total Program Expenses $43,838,489 ($40,261,357)

As one can see, the reliance upon local tax revenues for governmental activities is crucial.  Over 69
percent of expenses are directly supported by local property taxes.  Grants and entitlements not
restricted to specific programs support 24.3 percent, while investments and other miscellaneous
type revenues support the remaining activity costs.  Program revenues fund only 8.2 percent of all
governmental expenses.

Clearly, the North Olmsted community is by far the greatest source of financial support for
the students of the North Olmsted City Schools.

School District Funds

Information regarding the School District's major funds can be found on page 17.  These funds are
accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.  All governmental funds had total
revenues of $45,790,807 and expenditures of $43,287,815.  The net change in fund balance for
the year was most significant in the General Fund, an increase of $1,903,166.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School District's budget is prepared according to Ohio law and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances.  The most
significant fund to be budgeted is the main operating fund of the School District, the General Fund.

During the course of fiscal year 2002, the School District amended its general fund budget
numerous times, none significantly.  Fluctuations among the budget base expenditures categories
are due to the School District's site-based style of budgeting that is designed to tightly control
expenses but provide flexibility for managers to redirect funds as conditions develop during the
year.
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Overall revenue received by the General Fund exceeded budgetary projections by $1,128,568 or
3.1%.  The increase was due primarily to additional tax revenue received from a personal property
tax compliance review implemented by the School District during the year and the receipt of two
years of tax abatement revenue sharing from the City of North Olmsted.  Actual expenditures for
the year were $725,455 or 1.8% under General Fund budget projections.  The decrease was due
to reduced utility cost because of a mild winter, lower than anticipated grade realignment costs, and
reductions in programs implemented to conserve operating funds after the third defeat at the ballot
of a tax levy.

The above circumstances allowed the School district to end the school year with a General Fund
unencumbered cash balance of $11,085,445 which was $1,877,979 higher than original
projections.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

All capital assets, except land, are reported net of depreciation.  At the end of fiscal 2002, the
School District had $12,533,580 invested in land, buildings, equipment and vehicles.  Table 5
shows fiscal 2002 values compared to 2001.

Table 5
Capital Assets at June 30
Governmental Activities

2002  2001

Land and Improvements $1,504,393 $1,494,215
Building and Improvements 8,093,595 8,365,730
Furniture and Equipment 1,532,076 1,559,057
Vehicles 1,403,516 1,279,585

Total Capital Assets $12,533,580 $12,698,587

During fiscal 2002, the School District purchased $558,681 of capital assets.  Approximately 48.2
percent or $269,559 of the purchases were for school buses, 33.4 percent or $186,576 for furniture
and equipment with the remaining 18.4 percent or $102,546 for land and building improvements.
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Debt

At June 30, 2002 the School district had no outstanding bonds.  The School District's long-term
debt is limited to a $116,000 note payable.  Proceeds from the note were used for the acquisition of
school buses in 1997.  The note is to be repaid in annual equal payments of interest and principal
through fiscal year 2006.

The School District's overall legal debt margin was $73,235,900 with an unvoted debt margin of
$813,700.  Because the School District has no outstanding bonds for over ten years, the School
District has no official bond rating.

School District Outlook

The School District has a strong financial position.  The Board of Education and the administration
closely monitor the District's revenues and expenditures in accordance with its financial forecast
and the School District's Continuous Improvement Plan.

The School District's financial future is not without challenges, though.  The nature of school
funding in Ohio severely restricts the growth in the School District's operating revenues and
requires the School District to periodically seek additional funds from the taxpayers to offset rising
operating costs.  The North Olmsted voters continue to show their support for the schools as
illustrated with the passage of a 7.9 mill operating levy in May 2002.

In addition, the problem of limited growth in revenue, school districts are faced with the challenge of
loosing traditional sources of tax revenue through the Ohio General Assembly legislative actions.
In June 1999, the Ohio General Assembly passed House Bill 284 that will phase-out, over a period
of 25 years, the taxation on business inventories.  Once fully implemented, the School District's
operating revenue will be reduced $2,400,000 annually.  In June 1999, the Ohio General Assembly
passed Senate Bill 3 to deregulate the electric utility industry in Ohio.  Under this legislation, the
assessment rate on electric utility property was dramatically reduced and will result in the annual
loss of over $900,000 in tax revenue for the School District.

Financial aid from the State of Ohio through the State Foundation Program has been declining as a
major source of operating revenue for the North Olmsted City School District.  Because North
Olmsted City Schools is considered a wealthy district in terms of property values, it receives a
relatively small amount of revenue from the State to fund operating expenses.

As a result of the challenges mentioned above, the School District's administration continues to
carefully and prudently plan its expenditures to provide adequate resources to meet student needs
over the next several years.  The administration is currently reviewing all programs and services
provided to students with the goal of reducing operating costs $1.5 million annually in a more
economic manner without a reduction in programs or services.
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The North Olmsted City School District has committed itself to financial excellence for many years.
The School District was the first school district in Ohio to receive the Government Financial Officers
Association (GFOA) Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting in 1985 and
has received the award for seventeen consecutive years.  The District has also received the
Association of School Business Officials (OSBO) Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting and the State of Ohio Auditor's Award for the past six years.  In addition to its
commitment to financial reporting, the School District has elected early implementation of GASB
Statement 34 "Basic Financial Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State
and Local Governments".

Contacting the School District's Financial Management

This report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers and creditors with a general overview of
the School District's finances and to show the School District's accountability for the money it
receives.  If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact Robert J. Matson, CPA, and Treasurer at North Olmsted City School District, 24100 Palm
Drive, North Olmsted, Ohio 44070.  Or by telephone at 440-779-3551.



15

NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2002

Governmental

Activities

Assets

Equity in pooled cash  $      13,050,773

Accounts receivable                 81,408

Due from other governments               653,498

Inventories and supplies               184,969

Taxes receivable          30,644,610

Capital assets

Nondepreciable capital assets               955,597

Depreciable capital assets, net          11,577,983

Total assets          57,148,838

Liabilities

Accounts and contracts payable               247,621

Accrued salaries, wages and benefits            4,254,185

Claims payable            1,072,825

Due to other governments            1,144,877

Deferred revenue          24,418,944

Long term liabilities

Due within one year               574,930

Due in more than one year            3,135,994

Total liabilities          34,849,376

Net assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt          12,533,580

Restricted for:

Capital projects            1,016,209

Other purposes               551,020

Unrestricted (deficit)            8,198,653

Total net assets  $      22,299,462



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
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 Program Revenues Net (Expense)

 Charges for Operating Grants  Capital Revenue and
Services Interest and Grants and Changes in

Expenses and Sales Contributions Contributions Net Assets

Governmental activities
Instruction

Regular       19,996,444            134,053            457,918                        -     (19,404,473)
Special         4,279,749            189,062            497,396                        -       (3,593,291)
Vocational            682,107                        -              51,342                        -          (630,765)
Adult/continuing            148,210              33,223              39,483                        -            (75,504)
Other instruction            537,666                        -                        -                        -          (537,666)

Supporting services
Pupil         3,012,740                        -            113,485                        -       (2,899,255)
Instructional staff         1,539,103                        -                4,054                        -       (1,535,049)
Board of education            121,763                        -                        -                        -          (121,763)
Administration         3,089,415                        -                   342                        -       (3,089,073)
Fiscal services            855,813                        -                        -                        -          (855,813)
Business            306,056                        -                7,592                        -          (298,464)
Operation and maintenance         3,878,826                        -                1,864                        -       (3,876,962)
Pupil transportation         1,696,739              52,881                        -              41,767       (1,602,091)
Central services            683,277                        -              48,910                        -          (634,367)

Operation of non-instructional
Food service operation         1,446,434         1,304,817                        -                        -          (141,617)
Community services            508,363                        -            502,797                        -              (5,566)

Extracurricular activities
Academic and subject oriented            150,952                        -                        -                        -          (150,952)
Sports oriented            805,261              96,146                        -                        -          (709,115)

Debt service
Interest              99,571                        -                        -                        -            (99,571)

Totals  $   43,838,489  $     1,810,182  $     1,725,183  $          41,767     (40,261,357)

General revenues
Property taxes levied for:
   General purpose       29,109,564
   Capital improvements         1,148,089
Grants and entitlements not restricted to specific purposes       10,659,176
Investment earnings            660,300
Miscellaneous            334,286

Total general revenues       41,911,415

Change in net assets         1,650,058
Net assets at beginning of year, restated       20,649,404

Net assets at end of year  $   22,299,462
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BALANCE SHEET -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
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 Other  Total
 Governmental  Governmental

 General  Funds  Funds

Assets
Equity in pooled cash  $      10,645,018  $        1,582,682  $      12,227,700
Restricted cash               223,073                          -               223,073
Receivables, net of allowance

Taxes, current          28,657,030            1,058,276          29,715,306
Taxes, delinquent               896,208                 33,096               929,304
Accounts and other                 58,717                 22,691                 81,408

Due from other governments               632,957                 20,541               653,498
Interfund receivable               544,337                          -               544,337
Inventories and supplies               147,331                 37,638               184,969

Total assets and other debits  $      41,804,671  $        2,754,924  $      44,559,595

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities

Accounts and contracts payable  $           232,180  $             15,441  $           247,621
Accrued  wages and benefits            4,160,725                 93,460            4,254,185
Due to other governments               714,754                 28,827               743,581
Interfund payable                          -                 44,337                 44,337
Deferred revenue          25,099,923               923,289          26,023,212

Total liabilities          30,207,582            1,105,354          31,312,936

Fund balances
Reserved for budget stabilization               223,073                          -               223,073
Reserved for inventories               147,331                 37,638               184,969
Reserved for property taxes            5,107,738               188,624            5,296,362
Reserved for encumbrances               150,466               388,225               538,691
Unreserved, reported in

General Fund            5,968,481                          -            5,968,481
Special Revenue Funds                          -               518,866               518,866
Debt Service Fund                          -                          -                          -
Capital Projects Funds                          -               516,217               516,217

Total fund balances          11,597,089            1,649,570          13,246,659

Total liabilities and fund balances  $      41,804,671  $        2,754,924  $      44,559,595



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO
NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2002
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Total governmental funds balances  $     13,246,659

Amount reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore not reported in the funds.         12,533,580

Other long term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.  These
deferrals are attributed to property taxes.           1,604,268

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the
costs of insurance to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities
of the internal service fund are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets.            (972,825)

Due to other governments includes contractually required
pension contributions not expected to be paid with
expendable available financial resources and therefore
not reported in the funds.            (401,296)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Compensated absences         (3,594,924)
Notes payable            (116,000)

Net assets of governmental activities  $     22,299,462
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 Other  Total
 Governmental  Governmental

 General  Funds  Funds

Revenues
Taxes  $      29,278,504  $        1,158,664  $      30,437,168
Tuition and fees               382,047                 33,223               415,270
Interest               566,962                 93,955               660,917
Property rentals                   6,156                          -                   6,156
Intergovernmental          10,550,937            2,205,168          12,756,105
Charges for services                          -            1,005,577            1,005,577
Extracurricular                          -               147,471               147,471
Other               278,106                 84,037               362,143

Total revenues          41,062,712            4,728,095          45,790,807

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Regular          19,034,643               573,295          19,607,938
Special            3,859,107               317,617            4,176,724
Vocational               627,241                 44,000               671,241
Adult/continuing                 49,220                 92,213               141,433
Other instruction               537,666                          -               537,666

Supporting services
Pupil            2,830,694                 71,762            2,902,456
Instructional staff            1,479,975                   3,973            1,483,948
Board of education               163,810                          -               163,810
Administration            2,769,423                   1,182            2,770,605
Fiscal services               847,096               847,096
Business               227,457                 19,502               246,959
Operation and maintenance            3,365,077                   2,584            3,367,661
Pupil transportation            1,506,495                 65,200            1,571,695
Central services               744,944                 11,242               756,186

Operation of non-instructional
Food service operation                 27,885            1,396,325            1,424,210
Community services                 20,905               478,676               499,581

Extracurricular activities
Academic and subject oriented               157,780                          -               157,780
Sports oriented               613,800               140,581               754,381

Capital outlay                 39,426               867,175               906,601
Debt service

Principal                 48,269               151,301               199,570
Interest                      703                 99,571               100,274

Total expenditures          38,951,616            4,336,199          43,287,815

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures            2,111,096               391,896            2,502,992

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers-in                 23,648               231,578               255,226
Operating transfers-out             (231,578)               (23,648)             (255,226)

Total other financing sources (uses)             (207,930)               207,930                          -

Net change in fund balances            1,903,166               599,826            2,502,992
Fund balances, beginning of year, as restated            9,738,383            1,052,472          10,790,855
Decrease in reserve for inventory               (44,460)                 (2,728)               (47,188)

Fund balances, end of year  $      11,597,089  $        1,649,570  $      13,246,659
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Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds  $     2,502,992

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which depreciation
exceeded capital outlays in the current period.

Capital outlay            558,681
Depreciation expense           (722,964 )
Total           (164,283 )

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues
in the funds.

Property taxes           (179,515 )
Intergovernmental revenue           (105,488 )
Tuition and fees             (17,257 )

          (302,260 )

Repayment of  note and capital lease principal is an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets            199,570

Some expenses reported in the statement of
activities, such as compensated absences and intergovernmental
payable which represents contractually required pension
contributions, do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.

Compensated absences           (266,380 )
Pension obligations             (38,873 )
Change in inventory             (47,188 )

          (352,441 )

The internal service fund used by management to charge the
costs of insurance to individual funds is not reported in
the district-wide statement of activities.  Governmental
fund expenditures and the related internal service fund
revenues are eliminated.  The net revenue (expense) of
the internal service fund is allocated among the
governmental activities.           (233,520 )

Change in net assets of governmental activities  $     1,650,058
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Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Taxes  $      25,390,000  $      25,390,000  $      26,023,195  $           633,195
Tuition and fees               303,000               303,000               382,047                 79,047
Interest               600,000               600,000               551,861               (48,139)
Property rentals                   1,000                   1,000                   6,156                   5,156
Intergovernmental          10,320,000          10,320,000          10,741,879               421,879
Other               261,000               257,500               294,930                 37,430

Total revenues          36,875,000          36,871,500          38,000,068            1,128,568

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Regular          19,076,511          19,087,764          18,987,157               100,607
Special            3,865,940            3,897,312            3,868,641                 28,671
Vocational               619,923               628,378               625,993                   2,385
Adult/continuing                 52,100                 52,300                 48,536                   3,764
Other instruction               497,050               754,449               556,842               197,607

Supporting services
Pupil            2,771,782            2,875,733            2,816,017                 59,716
Instructional staff            1,638,904            1,539,345            1,492,190                 47,155
Board of education               218,000               203,730               188,474                 15,256
Administration            2,831,656            2,772,660            2,746,025                 26,635
Fiscal services               744,703               873,841               857,047                 16,794
Business               211,167               230,407               229,065                   1,342
Operation and maintenance            3,671,490            3,497,904            3,375,181               122,723
Pupil transportation            1,553,515            1,567,627            1,534,412                 33,215
Central services               925,817               806,681               790,510                 16,171

Operation of non-instructional
Food service operation                 32,700                 28,200                 28,103                        97
Community services                 27,242                 27,242                 20,905                   6,337
Extracurricular activities
Academic and subject oriented               217,100               161,300               157,780                   3,520
Sports oriented               716,800               631,615               612,418                 19,197

Capital outlay                 41,102                 65,741                 41,478                 24,263

Total expenditures          39,713,502          39,702,229          38,976,774               725,455

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures          (2,838,502)          (2,830,729)             (976,706)            1,854,023

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers-in                          -                          -                 23,648                 23,648
Advances-in                 50,000               503,442               503,442                          -
Refund of prior year expenditure                          -                          -                      308                      308
Advances-out                          -             (506,890)             (506,890)                          -
Operating transfers-out             (237,726)             (231,578)             (231,578)                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)             (187,726)             (235,026)             (211,070)                 23,956

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)          (3,026,228)          (3,065,755)          (1,187,776)            1,877,979

Fund balances, beginning of year          11,851,960          11,851,960          11,851,960                          -
Prior year encumbrances               421,261               421,261               421,261                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $        9,246,993  $        9,207,466  $      11,085,445  $        1,877,979
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Self Insurance

Assets

Equity in pooled cash  $        600,000

Liabilities

Claims payable         1,072,825

Interfund payable            500,000

Total liabilities         1,572,825

Net assets

Unrestricted  $      (972,825)
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 Self Insurance

Operating revenues

Charges for services  $     3,259,461

Operating expenses

Purchased services             340,772

Claims         3,152,209

Total operating expenses         3,492,981

Change in net assets           (233,520)

Net assets, beginning of year           (739,305)

Net assets, end of year  $       (972,825)
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Self Insurance

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Cash received from interfund services  $     3,259,461

Cash payments for goods and services           (340,772)

Cash payments for claims        (2,918,689)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                          -

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year             600,000

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  $        600,000

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash

used for operating activities

Operating loss  $       (233,520)

Adjustments

Increase in claims payable             233,520

Net cash used for operating activities  $                      -
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Student
Activities

Assets
Equity in pooled cash  $             79,362

Total assets                 79,362

Liabilities
Due to students                 79,362

Total liabilities  $             79,362
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY

The  N or th Olmsted  C ity  Sc ho ol D istric t (the  Distr ic t)  w a s es tab lish e d fo r  the  p u rp os e  o f ex e rc is ing  the  righ ts
a nd  p riv ileg e s co nv e ye d to it b y  the  co ns titutio n  a nd  la ws  o f the  State o f Oh io .  Th e  D is tr ict is  a  c ity  s ch o ol
d is tr ic t a s d efin ed  by  Se ctio n 3 31 1.0 3 of th e Oh io Re vis ed  C o de .  Th e Dis tr ic t o pe ra tes  u nd e r an  elec te d 
Boa rd  o f Edu c atio n c on sis ting  o f fiv e  membe r s an d  is re s po ns ible fo r  p ro v id in g p ub lic  e du ca tio n to re sid en ts 
o f th e D is tr ict.  Av er ag e  d aily  me mb e rs hip o n, o r a s of, O ctob e r 1, 20 01  w a s 4,7 41 .  Th e Dis tr ic t e mp lo y s
4 01  c er tific ated  an d 28 7  n on - c er tific ated  employ e es .

REPORTING ENTITY

The r ep o rtin g  entity  is com po sed  o f the p rim ar y g ov er nm ent, com po nen t un its  and  other  o rg an izatio ns  that are in clud ed
to en su r e th at th e f in an cial statemen ts  o f the D istrict ar e n ot m is leadin g.  Th e p rim ar y go v er nm ent con s is ts  of  all fu nd s ,
d ep ar tm ents, bo ar ds  an d agencies  that are n o t leg ally  s eparate fr om  th e D is tr ict.  Fo r th e D is tr ict, th is in clu des g en er al
o peratio ns , f oo d ser vice, and  s tud en t r elated activ ities  o f the D is trict.

W ithin the  D istrict bo un d ar ie s, th er e  a re  v a riou s  n on pu b lic s ch oo ls .  Cu r re nt State leg is la tio n p ro vide s 
fun ding  to  th es e no n pu blic sc ho o ls .  Th es e mon ie s  a re  r e ce iv e d an d d is bu r se d by  th e D is tr ic t o n b eh alf o f
the  n on p ub lic  s ch oo ls by  th e Tr e as ur e r of th e Sc h oo l Dis tr ic t, as  d ire cte d by  th e no n pu blic  sc ho o ls . Th e se 
tra ns ac tio ns  ar e re p or te d  a s a g ov er n me ntal ac tiv ity of th e D is tr ic t.

Com po nen t un its  are legally  s ep arate or ganizatio n s fo r w hich  th e Dis tr ict is fin an cially accou ntable.  The D is trict is 
f in an cially accou ntable f or  an o rg an ization  if  th e Distr ict app oints  a v o ting  m ajo rity of  th e or g an ization s' go vern ing 
b oard  an d, 1 )  the D istrict is  ab le to  s ig nif ican tly  inf luence the p r og ram s or  s erv ices perf o rm ed  or  p ro v id ed  by  the
o rg an ization ; o r 2)  th e D is tr ict is leg ally  en titled to  or  can other wise access  th e o rg an ization s ' reso u rces ; the D istrict is 
leg ally  ob lig ated  o r  h as  otherw ise as su med the r esp on sib ility  to fin an ce th e def icits  o f or  pr ov ided fin an cial su pp o rt to 
the o rg anizatio n; o r  the District is  ob ligated  f o r th e d eb t o f th e o rg an ization .  Co m po nent un its  m ay  also  in clud e
o rg an ization s  that are f iscally  depen dent o n  the District in  th at th e Dis tr ict app ro v es  the bu dg et, the is su ance of  debt, o r
the lev y in g o f taxes .  Th e Distr ict h as  n o com po n en t un its .

The  D is trict is  a ss o ciate d with  th e L ak e Er ie Ed u ca tion a l Co mpu te r Ass oc iatio n, th e Polar is  Ca re e r Ce nte r,
the  N or th Olmsted  C ity  Sc ho ols Edu ca tio n Fo u nd ation , an d  the  Oh io  Sc ho ol Co un cil Ass o ciatio n  w hic h ar e
c on side r ed  to  b e jo intly  go ve rn e d or g an iz ation s.  The  D istric t also  pa rticipa te s  in a  p ub lic  r is k  p oo l man ag e d
b y th e Ass oc iatio n o f Sc h oo l Bu s in es s  O ffic ials W or ke rs '  C omp en sa tio n Gr o up  R ating  Pr og ra m.  The s e
o rg an iz a tion s  a nd  th eir r elatio n sh ip s  w ith the  D istrict ar e d es cr ib e d in  mo re  d e ta il in  N ote s 11  an d 18  to 
the se  fina nc ial s ta temen ts.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The
District also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued on or
before November 30, 1989, to its governmental activities and to its proprietary fund provided they do not conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  Following are the more significant of the District’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The District’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net assets
and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial
information.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the District as a
whole.  These statements include the financial activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary
funds.  The activity of the internal service fund is eliminated to avoid “doubling up” revenues and
expenses.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental activities of the District at year-end.
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each program
or function of the District’s governmental activities.  Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
service, program, or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function.  Program revenues include
charges paid by the recipient for the goods or services offered by the program, and grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.  Revenues which are not
classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the District, with certain limited exceptions.
The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function
is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements

During the year, the District segregates transactions related to certain District functions or activities in
separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance.  Fund financial
statements are designed to present financial information of the District at this more detailed level.  The
focus of governmental financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type.  Each
major fund is presented in a separate column.  Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single
column.  The internal service fund is presented in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund
statements.  Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B.  FUND ACCOUNTING

The District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year.  Fund accounting is designed to
demonstrate legal compliance and to aid management by segregating transactions related to certain District
functions or activities.  A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.  The
various funds of the District are grouped into the categories governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed.  Governmental
funds focus on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources.  Expendable assets are assigned to the
various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they may or must be used.  Current liabilities are
assigned to the fund from which they will be paid.  The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities
is reported as fund balance.  The following is the District’s major governmental funds:

General Fund - the general fund is the operating fund of the school district and is used to account for all
financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The other governmental funds of the District account for grants and other resources whose use is
restricted to a particular purpose.

Proprietary Fund

The proprietary fund focuses on the determination of the changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows.
Proprietary funds are classified as enterprise or internal service; the District has no enterprise funds.

Internal Service Fund – The internal service fund accounts for the financing of services provided
by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the District on a cost
reimbursement basis.  The District’s only internal service fund accounts for revenue received from
other funds and the settlement expenses for medical, surgical, prescription drug, and dental
claims of District employees.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets.  The fiduciary fund category is split into
four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds, and agency funds.  Trust
funds are used to account for assets held by the District under a trust agreement for individuals, private
organizations, or other governments and are therefore not available to support the District’s own programs.  The
District has no trust funds.  Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve
measurement of results of operations.  The District’s agency fund accounts for student activities.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C.  MEASUREMENT FOCUS

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus.  All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the District are
included on the Statement of Net Assets.  The Statement of Activities presents increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in the total net assets.

Fund Financial Statements - All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus.  With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included
on the balance sheet.  The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources
(i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial
resources.  This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide
financial statements are prepared.  Governmental fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with
brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for
governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statements, the internal service fund is accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus.  All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this fund are included on the
statement of net assets.  The statement of changes in fund net assets presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases
(i.e., expenses) in net total assets.  The statement of cash flows provides information about how the District finances
and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activity.

D.  BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the financial
statements.  Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Proprietary and the fiduciary fund also use the
accrual basis of accounting.  Differences in the accrual and modified accrual bases of accounting arise in the
recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred revenue and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is
recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place.  On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in
the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.  “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined, and “available” means collectible within the current fiscal year or soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year.  For the District, available means expected to be
received within sixty days of fiscal year end.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D.  BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

Nonexchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include
property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations.  On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized
in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied (See Note 7).  Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.  Eligibility requirements
include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the year when use
is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local resources to be used for a
specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a
reimbursement basis.  On a modified accrual basis, revenue from nonexchange transactions must also be available
before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and available
at fiscal year end: property taxes available as an advance, grants, investment earnings, tuition, and student fees.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of June 30, 2002,  but which were levied to finance
fiscal year 2003 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenue.  Grants and entitlements received before the
eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as deferred revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period have
also been reported as deferred revenue.

Expenditures/Expenses

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.  The measurement focus
of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses.
Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if
measurable. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E.  BUDGETARY PROCESS

All funds, other than agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted and appropriated.  The major documents
prepared are the tax budget, the appropriation resolution and the certificate of estimated resources, which are
prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting.  The tax budget demonstrates a need for existing or increased tax
rates.  The certificate of estimated resources establishes a limit on the amounts that the Board of Education may
appropriate.  The appropriation resolution is the Board’s authorization to spend resources and set annual limits on
expenditures plus encumbrances at a level of control selected by the Board.  The legal level of control has been
established by the Board of Education at the fund, object level for the General Fund and Debt Service Fund and at
the fund level for all other funds.

The certificate of estimated resources may be amended during the year if projected increases or decreases in revenue
are identified by the District Treasurer.  The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary
statements reflect the amounts in the certificate when the original appropriations were adopted.  The amounts
reported as the final budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts in the final amended
certificate that were in effect at the time the final appropriations were passed by the Board of Education.

The appropriation resolution is subject to amendment by the Board throughout the year with the restriction that
appropriations may not exceed estimated revenues.  The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts reflect
the first appropriation for that fund that covered the entire fiscal year, including amounts automatically carried over
from prior years.  The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts represent the final appropriation amounts
passed by the Board during the year.

F.  CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash received by the District is deposited in one central bank account with individual fund balance
integrity maintained through District records.  Monies for all funds are maintained in this account or
temporarily transferred to the State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAROhio) or other short term
investments.  Under existing Ohio statutes, interest earnings are allocated to funds based on average
monthly cash balances.  Interest income earned for the year ended June 30, 2002 totaled $660,917.

Except for investment contracts and money market investments that had a remaining maturity of one year
or less at the time of purchase, investments are reported at fair value, which is based on quoted market
prices.  Investment contracts and money market investments that had a remaining maturity of one year or
less at the time of purchase are reported at cost or amortized cost.

The District has invested in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROhio) during the year.
STAROhio is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office, which allows governments
within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes.  STAROhio is not registered with the SEC as
an investment company, but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment
Company Act of 1940.  Investments in STAROhio are valued at STAROhio’s share price, which is the
price the investment could be sold for on June 30, 2002.

Investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase are considered to be
cash equivalents.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

G.  INVENTORY

On government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at the lower of cost or market on a first-in, first-
out basis and are expensed when used.

On fund financial statements, inventories of governmental funds are stated at cost.  Cost is determined on
a first-in, first-out basis. Inventory in governmental funds consists of expendable supplies held for
consumption.  The cost of inventory items is recorded as an expenditure in the governmental fund types
when purchased.

H.  RESTRICTED ASSETS

Assets are reported as restricted assets when limitations on their use change the normal understanding
of the availability of the asset.  Such constraints are either imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or
laws of other government or imposed by enabling legislation.  Restricted assets include the amount
required by State statute to be set aside to create a reserve for budget stabilization.

I.  CAPITAL ASSETS

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary
funds.  These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds.  These assets are
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets but are
not reported on the fund financial statements.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and reductions during
the year.  Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date received.  The District
maintains a capitalization threshold of two thousand five hundred dollars.  The District does not possess any
infrastructure.  Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized.

All reported capital assets, other than land, are depreciated.  Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful
lives of the related capital assets.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful
lives:

Description Estimated Lives
Land improvements 25 - 30 years
Buildings 60 - 80 years
Buildings improvements 25 years
Furniture and equipment 8 - 35 years
Vehicles 15 years

J.  INTERFUND BALANCES

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are
classified as "interfund receivables/payables".  These amounts are eliminated in the governmental column
of the statement of net assets.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

K.  COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to receive
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the District will compensate the
employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means.

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vesting method.  The liability is based on an estimate of the
amount of accumulated sick leave that will be paid as a termination benefit.  The liability includes employees who
are currently eligible to receive termination benefits and those the District has identified as probable of receiving
payment in the future.  The amount is based on accumulated sick leave and employees’ wage rates at fiscal year end,
taking into consideration any limits specified in the District’s termination policy.

For governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount that
is normally expected to be paid using expendable available financial resources.   These amounts are recorded in the
account "compensated absences payable" in the fund from which the employees who have accumulated leave are
paid.  The noncurrent portion of the liability is not reported.

L.  ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial statements
and all payables and accrued liabilities from proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in
full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the funds.  However, claims and judgments,
compensated absences, and contractually required pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds
are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the
current year.  Long-term notes and capital leases are recognized as a liability on the governmental fund financial
statements when due.

M. NET ASSETS

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities.  Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.  Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws, or regulations of other governments.

The District applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available.

N.  FUND BALANCE RESERVES AND DESIGNATIONS

The District reserves those portions of fund equity which are legally segregated for a specific future use or which do
not represent available expendable resources and therefore are not available for appropriation or expenditure.
Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity which is available for appropriation in future periods.
Fund equity reserves have been established for property taxes, inventory, budget stabilization, and encumbrances.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

N.  FUND BALANCE RESERVES AND DESIGNATIONS (continued)

The reserve for property taxes represents taxes recognized as revenue under generally accepted accounting
principles but not available for appropriation under State statute.  The reserve for budget stabilization represents
monies required to be set aside by State statue to protect against cyclical changes in revenues and expenditures.  The
designation for budget stabilization represents revenues set aside that exceed statutorily required amounts.

O. OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
proprietary fund.  For the District, these revenues are charges for services for the self-insurance program.
Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or service that is the primary
activity of this fund.  Revenues and expenses not meeting those definitions are reported as non-
operating.

P.  INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds.  Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without
a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers.  Interfund transfers are reported as other
financing sources/uses in governmental funds.  Repayments from funds responsible for particular
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial
statements.

Q.  ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported on the financial statements and
accompanying notes.  Actual results may differ from those estimates.

NOTE 3 – CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCE

A.  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

For fiscal year 2002, the District has implemented GASB Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements - and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments”; GASB Statement No. 37, “Basic
Financial Statements for State and Local Governments: Omnibus”, GASB Statement No. 38, “Certain Financial
Statement Note Disclosures”, and GASB Interpretation No. 6, “Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities
and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements”.  At June 30, 2002, there was no effect on fund
balance as a result of implementing GASB Statements 37 and 38 and GASB Interpretation No. 6.

GASB Statement No. 34 creates new basic financial statements for reporting on the District’s financial activities.
The financial statements now include government-wide financial statements prepared on an accrual basis of
accounting and fund financial statements which present information for individual major funds rather than by fund
type.  Nonmajor funds are presented in total in one column.
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NOTE 3 – CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCE (continued)

A.  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (continued)

The government-wide financial statements split the District’s programs between governmental and business-type
activities.  Except for the restatement explained below, the beginning net asset amount for the business-type
activities equals fund equity of the enterprise funds from last year.  The beginning net asset amount for
governmental activities reflects the change in fund balance for governmental funds at June 30, 2001, caused by the
elimination of the internal service fund, reclassification of funds based on guidance provided in GASB Statement
No. 34 and the conversion to the accrual basis of accounting.

It was determined that enterprise funds and certain internal service funds should be reclassified to special revenue
funds and that the self-insurance program should be accounted for as an internal service fund.

B.  RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCE

The restatements for GASB Statement No. 34 had the following effects on fund balance of the major and nonmajor
funds of the District as they were previously reported.  The transition from governmental fund balance to net assets
of the governmental activities is also presented.

 Non-Major
 Governmental

 General  Funds  Total
Fund balances, June 30, 2001  $   8,922,765  $     966,035  $   9,888,800
Fund reclassification         739,305           72,105         811,410
Fixed assets, net                    -          (87,827 )          (87,827 )
Deferred revenue                    -           16,487           16,487
Accrued expenses           76,313           85,672         161,985
Restated fund balances, June 30, 2001      9,738,383      1,052,472     10,790,855

GASB 34 adjustments
Capital assets     12,698,587
Internal Service Fund        (739,305 )
Long-term assets      1,906,250
Long-term liabilities     (4,006,983 )
Governmental activities net assets, June 30, 2001  $ 20,649,404

 Business-type

 Activities
Net assets, June 30, 2001  $           48,426
Fund reclassification             (48,426)

Adjusted net assets, June 30, 2001  $                     -



36

NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 4 – DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

At June 30, 2002, the Adult Education and Adult Basic Education special revenue funds had deficit fund balances of
$ 8,573 and $ 5,863, respectively.  The General Fund is liable for any deficits in these funds and provides transfers
when cash is required, not when accruals occur.  The deficit fund balances resulted from adjustments for accrued
liabilities.

NOTE 5 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

While the District is reporting financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund balances/retained
earnings on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is
based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances.  The
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
presented for the General Fund is presented on the budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison of actual
results with the budget.  The major differences between the budget basis and GAAP basis statements are the
following:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when susceptible to
accrual (GAAP basis).

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when the liability is
incurred (GAAP basis).

3. Encumbrances are treated as expenditures (budget basis) rather than as a reservation of fund
balance (GAAP basis).

The following table summarizes the adjustments necessary to reconcile the GAAP basis statements to the budgetary
basis statements for the General Fund.

Net Change in Fund Balance
General Fund

General
Budget basis  $  (1,187,776)
Adjustments, increase (decrease)
Revenue accruals      3,062,644
Expenditure accruals           25,158
Other sources (uses)             3,140

GAAP basis, as reported  $   1,903,166
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

State statutes classify monies held by the District into three categories.

Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet current demands on the treasury.  Such monies must be
maintained either as cash in the District Treasury, in commercial accounts payable or withdrawable on demand,
including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits the Board of Education has identified as not required for use within the current
five year period of designation of depositories.  Inactive deposits must either be evidenced by certificates of deposit
maturing not later than the end of the current period of designation of depositories, or by savings or deposit accounts
including, but not limited to, passbook accounts.

Interim monies are those monies which are not needed for immediate use but which will be needed before the end of
the current period of designation of depositories.  Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of deposit
maturing not more than one year from the date of deposit, or by savings or deposit accounts, including passbook
accounts.

Protection of the District’s deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), by eligible
securities pledged by the financial institution as security for repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the
Treasurer by the financial institution, or by a single collateral pool established by the financial institution to secure
the repayment of all public monies deposited with the institution.

Interim monies may be invested in the following securities:

1. United States Treasury bills, bonds, notes, or any other obligation or security issued by the United States
Treasury, or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States;

2. Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligation or security issued by any federal government agency or
instrumentality including, but not limited to, the Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home
Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Government National
Mortgage Association, and Student Loan Marketing Association.  All federal agency securities shall be
direct issuances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities;

3. Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market value of the
securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of the agreement by at
least 2 percent and be marked to market daily, and the term of the agreement must not exceed thirty days;

4. Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

5. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in division (1) or (2)
and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that investments in securities described
in this division are made only through eligible institutions;

6. The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAR Ohio);

7. Commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances (if authorized by the Board of Education), and

8. Under limited circumstances, corporate debt interests rated in either of the two highest rating
classifications by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements, and derivatives are
prohibited.  The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage, and short selling are also
prohibited.  An investment must mature within five years from the date of purchase, unless matched to a specific
obligation or debt of the District, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be held to maturity.

Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions.  Payment for investments may be made
only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the Treasurer or qualified trustee or, if the
securities are not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian.

At fiscal year end, the District had $1,010 in cash on hand which is included on the balance sheet of the District as
part of “Equity in Pooled Cash”.

The following information classifies deposits and investments by categories of risk as defined in GASB Statement
No. 3, “Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments (including Repurchase Agreements), and Reverse
Repurchase Agreements”.

At fiscal year end, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits was $6,736,520 and the bank balance was
$7,270,611, all of which was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by a qualified third party
trustee in the name of the North Olmsted City District.

The District’s investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the District at fiscal
year end.  Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered for which the securities are held by the
District or its agent in the District’s name.  Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which
the securities are held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the District’s name.  Category 3 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust
department or agent but not in the District’s name.  Investment in STAROhio, the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool,
is not classified by degree of credit risk since it is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry
form.

Category Fair
1 2 3 Value

U. S. Government securities  $              -  $              -   $  5,886,831 $     5,886,831
Investment in StarOhio            506,784

 $     6,393,615
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

The classification of cash and cash equivalents and investments on the combined financial statements is based on
criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9, “Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Non-Expendable Trust Funds
and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting”.

A reconciliation between the classification of cash and cash equivalents and investments on the combined financial
statements and the classification of deposits and investments according to GASB Statement No. 3 is as follows:

Cash and
Cash

Equivalents Investments
GASB Statement No. 9  $13,130,135  $                     -
U. S. Government securities     (5,886,831 )          5,886,831
Investment in State Treasurer's Investment Pool        (506,784 )             506,784
GASB Statement No. 3  $  6,736,520  $      6,393,615

NOTE 7 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied and assessed on a calendar year basis, while the District’s fiscal year runs from July
through June.  First-half tax distributions are received by the District in the second half of the fiscal year.  Second-
half tax distributions are received in the first half of the following fiscal year.

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility, and tangible personal (used in
business) property located in the District.  Real and public utility property tax revenues received in
calendar year 2002 represent the collection of calendar year 2001 taxes.  Real property taxes for 2002
were levied after April 1, 2002, on the assessed values as of January 1, 2002, the lien date.  Assessed
values for real property taxes are established by State statute at 35 percent of appraised market value.
Real property taxes are payable annually or semiannually.  If paid annually, payment is due December
31; if paid semiannually, the first payment is due December 31, with the remainder payable by June 20.
Under certain circumstances, State statute permits alternate payment dates to be established.

Public utility real and tangible personal property taxes for 2002 were levied after April 1, 2002, on the assessed
values as of December 31, 2001, the lien date.  Public utility real property is assessed at 35 percent of true value;
tangible personal property is currently assessed at varying percentages of true value. Public utility property taxes are
payable on the same dates as real property taxes described previously.

Tangible personal property tax revenues received in calendar year 2002 (other than public utility property) represent
the collection of calendar year 2002 taxes.  Tangible personal property taxes for 2002 were levied after April 1,
2001, on the value as of December 31, 2001.  Tangible personal property is currently assessed at 25 percent of true
value.  Amounts paid by multi-county taxpayers are due September 20.  Single county taxpayers may pay annually
or semiannually.  If paid annually, payment is due April 30; if paid semiannually, the first payment is due April 30,
with the remainder payable by September 20.
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The District receives property taxes from Cuyahoga County.  The County Auditors periodically advance to the
District its portion of the taxes collected.  Second-half real property tax payments collected by the Counties by June
30, 2002, are available to finance fiscal year 2002/2003 operations.  The amount available to be advanced can vary
based on the date the tax bills are sent.

Accrued property taxes receivable represents delinquent taxes outstanding and real property, public utility property,
and tangible personal property taxes which were measurable as of June 30, 2002 and for which there is an
enforceable legal claim.  Although total property tax collections for the next fiscal year are measurable, amounts to
be received during the available period are not subject to reasonable estimation at June 30, nor were they levied to
finance fiscal year 2002 operations.  The receivable is therefore offset by a credit to deferred revenue for that portion
not intended to finance current year operations.  The amount available as an advance was recognized as revenue.

The amount available as an advance at June 30, 2002, was $ 5,107,738 in the General Fund and
$ 188,624 in the Permanent Improvements Fund.

The assessed values upon which the fiscal year 2002 taxes were collected are:

2001 Second 2002 First
Half Collections Half Collections

Amount % Amount %
Agricultural Residential
  Real Estate  $   525,299,230 64.65%  $   528,434,560 64.94%
Other Commercial      218,012,810 26.83      217,473,670 26.73
Public Utility Tangible        20,789,070 2.56        17,160,110 2.11
Tangible Personal Property        48,393,017 5.96        50,663,682 6.23

 $   812,494,127 100.00%  $   813,732,022 100.01%

Tax Rate per $ 1,000 of
  Assessed Valuation: 69.1 69.1
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NOTE 8 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2002, consisted of property taxes, accounts, intergovernmental, and accrued interest.  All
receivables are considered substantially collectible in full due to the ability to foreclose for the nonpayment of taxes,
the stable condition of State programs, and the current year guarantee of federal funds.  All receivables are expected
to be collected within one year.

A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental receivables follows:

Amount
Governmental Activities

General Fund  $     632,957
Adult Basic Education             8,906
Eisenhower Math             1,474
Drug Free Schools           10,161

Total Intergovernmental Receivables  $     653,498

NOTE 9 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, was as follows:

Balance
June 30, 2001 Balance
(As Restated) Additions Disposals June 30, 2002

Governmental Activities
Nondepreciable capital assets

Land  $     955,597  $                -  $                -  $       955,597

Depreciable capital assets
Land improvements         795,893           41,081           14,119           822,855
Buildings and improvements     16,509,260           61,465         180,651      16,390,074
Furniture and equipment      3,172,874         186,576         571,391        2,788,059
Vehicles      2,560,036         269,559         357,355        2,472,240

Total capital assets being depreciated     23,038,063         558,681      1,123,516      22,473,228

Less accumulated depreciation
Land improvements         257,275           30,903           14,119           274,059
Buildings and improvements      8,143,530         333,600         180,651        8,296,479
Furniture and equipment      1,613,817         212,833         570,667        1,255,983
Vehicles      1,280,451         145,628         357,355        1,068,724

Total accumulated depreciation     11,295,073         722,964      1,122,792      10,895,245

Depreciable capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation     11,742,990        (164,283)               724      11,577,983

Governmental activities capital assets, net  $ 12,698,587  $    (164,283)  $            724  $   12,533,580
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NOTE 9 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Instruction
Regular  $     318,045
Special           26,901
Vocational           13,681
Adult education             3,034

Supporting services
Pupil                 31
Instructional staff           19,999
Administration           62,573
Fiscal             3,657
Business               850
Operation and maintenance of plant          110,019
Pupil transportation         144,067
Central services             6,974

Extracurricular activities
Academic oriented                 22
Sports oriented           13,111

Total depreciation expense  $     722,964

NOTE 10 - INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES

On the fund financial statements at June 30, 2002, interfund balances consisted of the following:

Receivable Payable
General Fund  $       544,337  $                  -
Special Revenue Funds

Adult Education                     -             15,000
Adult Basic Literacy                     -             17,702
Eisenhower Math                     -              1,474
Drug Free Schools                     -             10,161

Internal Service Fund
Self Insurance - 500,000

 $       544,337  $       544,337

These amounts are represented as “Interfund Receivable/Payable” on the balance sheet.  The loans were made to
support programs and projects in the Special Revenue Funds and the Internal Service Fund.
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NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT

A .  P RO PERTY  A ND  LI ABILI TY 

The  D is trict is  e xp o se d to va rio us  r isk s of lo ss  re la te d  to tor ts , the ft, d amag e  to, an d de s tr uc tio n of as se ts,
e rr or s a nd  o mis sion s , in jur ie s to emp lo ye es  an d n atur al disa s te rs .  Du rin g fisc a l ye a r 20 02 , the  Distric t
c on tr ac ted  w ith  N ation wid e In su r an ce  Co mp an y  for  pr op er ty in s ur an ce .  Pro fe ss ion al liab ility  is  p ro te c te d b y
N atio nw ide  In su ra nc e  C omp an y with a $  2  millio n p er  o cc u rr en c e an d a  $  5  millio n  a gg r eg ate limit with  a  $ 1
million  su pp lemen ta l u mb r ella  p o licy .  Veh ic le s  a re  co ve re d  b y N atio nw ide  In su ra nc e  C omp an y.  Automo bile 
lia bility ha s  a  $  3  million  c omb in ed  sing le  limit o f lia bility with  a $ 1  millio n su p plemen tal u mbr ella  po lic y.
Settled  claims ha ve  no t e xc ee de d  this  c omme r cial co ve ra g e in  an y of th e p as t th r ee  y e ar s.  The re  ha ve 
b ee n no  sign ifica nt re du c tion s in co v er ag e fro m p rior  y e ar s.  Pos itio n  b on d s of $  20 ,0 0 0 ar e mainta in ed  fo r
the  Sup e rinte nd en t, Bu sin es s Ma n ag er , a nd  Bo ar d Pre side n t by  Na tion w id e Ins ur an c e Co mpa ny  a n d th e 
Tre as ur e r fo r  $  1 00 ,00 0 fro m Oh io Ca s ua lty.  The  Distric t pr o vide s life ins ur an c e, d isa bility an d  a cc id e ntal
d ea th  a n d dis me mb er men t ins ur an c e to  its emp lo ye e s, thr o ug h Sta nd ar d  L ife  Ins ur a nc e C ompa ny .

B.  W ORKERS ' COMP EN SA TI O N

The D is trict participated  in th e O hio  A ss ociatio n  o f Sch oo l Bus in es s  O ff icials W or ker s' Com p en satio n Gr o up  Rating 
P ro gr am  (G RP ) , an  in su ran ce p ur chasin g po ol.  Th e inten t o f the G RP  is  to  ach iev e th e b en ef it of  a redu ced  p r em iu m
f or  the Distr ict by  virtu e of  its gr o up in g and  r epr es en tatio n  w ith o th er  participants  in th e G RP .  Th e w or ker s'
com pens ation  ex perience o f th e p ar ticip atin g  s ch o ol d is tricts  is calcu lated  as o ne ex perien ce an d  a com m on  p r em iu m
r ate is  ap plied  to all s cho ol d istricts  in the G RP.  Each par ticipan t pay s its w or ker s' com p en satio n pr emium  to  the State
b as ed  o n  the rate f o r th e G RP  r ath er  th an  its in d iv id ual r ate.  Total sav in gs  ar e th en calcu lated  and  each  p articip ant's 
ind iv id u al p erf or man ce is  com par ed  to  the o v er all s av in g s per centag e o f the G RP .

A  p ar ticip an t w ill then either r eceiv e mo ney  f ro m  o r be requ ired to  co ntr ib ute to th e " eq uity po o ling  f u nd ."   This
" eq uity  po oling " ar r an gem en t in s ur es  th at each  p articip ant s h ar es  eq ually  in th e o ver all per fo rm ance of  th e G RP .
P ar ticip atio n  in th e G RP  is  lim ited to scho o l dis tr icts  th at can meet th e G RP 's  s election  criter ia.  Th e f ir m o f S heak ley 
U niServ ice, I nc., pr ov ides adm in is trativ e, cos t con tro l an d  actu ar ial s er vices  to the G RP.
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NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

C. EMPLO YEE MED ICAL BEN EFITS

The D is trict pr ov id es em p lo yee m ed ical, s ur g ical, p rescr ip tio n dr ug  an d d en tal b en ef its  thr o ug h a s elf- ins ur ance
p ro gr am  ad min is tered  b y Med ical Mu tu al of  O h io .  Th e Dis tr ict lim its  its  liab ility  f o r medical an d su rg ical claim s b y
m aintain in g a s pecif ic s top -los s  thr esh old o f $ 7 5,00 0.

The  c la im lia bility  of $  50 0,00 0  r ep o rted  a t J un e  3 0, 2 0 02  w a s es timated  by  Med ica l Mutua l o f Oh io an d is
b as ed  o n  the  re qu ir e me nts  o f Go v er nme ntal Stan da r ds  Boa r d Sta te me nt No . 1 0, w hic h re q uire s tha t a 
lia bility fo r  u np aid  c la ims  c os ts, in clud in g  e stima te s o f co s ts  r ela te d to in cu r re d b ut n ot re po r te d cla ims, be 
r ep or te d .  Th e es timate w as  n ot affe c te d by  in cr e me ntal claim a djus tme nt ex pe ns e s an d  d oe s n ot in clud e
o th er  a llo ca ted  o r u na llo ca te d c la im ad ju stmen t e xp en se s .  Ch an ge s in th e  b alan c e of claims  liab ility  d u ring 
the  y ea r  e nd e d Ju ne  30 , 2 00 2 an d  2 00 1  a re  s u mmar ize d be low .  In cu rr e d cla ims an d  c la ims  p ay men ts  ar e
n ot s eg r eg ate d be tw e en  c u rr en t a nd  p r io r ye a rs  c laims  d u e to  th e imp ra ctica bility of ob ta in ing  s u ch 
infor ma tio n.

June 30, 2001
June 30, 2002 (As Restated)

Unpaid claims, beginning of year  $       839,305  $       744,683
Incurred claims        3,385,729        2,888,435
Claims payments       (3,152,209 )       (2,793,813 )

 $    1,072,825  $       839,305

NOTE 12 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

A .  S CH OO L EMP LO Y EES RETIREMENT S YS TEM ( S ERS) 

The  N or th Olmsted  C ity  Sc ho ol D istric t co ntr ib ute s to  th e Sc h oo l Emp lo ye e s Re tir emen t Sys te m o f O hio
( SERS), a c os t- sh a ring  mu ltip le emp lo ye r d efin e d be ne fit p e ns io n p la n.  SER S p ro vid es  r etire me n t an d
d is ab ility  b e ne fits , a nn u al c os t o f liv in g a djus tme nts, an d d ea th  b e ne fits to  p lan  me mb er s a nd  b e ne ficia ries .
Autho rity to  es ta blish  a n d amen d  b en e fits  is  p ro v id ed  b y  s ta te statu te  p e r Ch ap ter  3 3 09  o f the  O h io  R ev ise d
C od e.  The  Sc ho ol Employ e es  R etire me n t Sy ste m is s ue s a p ub lic ly  a va ila ble , stan d  a lo n e fina n cial re po rt
tha t in c lu de s  fin an c ia l s ta te me n ts  a n d re qu ire d s up pleme ntar y  infor matio n .  Tha t r ep o rt may  be  o b ta in ed  by 
w riting  to  th e SERS, 3 00  Ea st Br oa d St., Su ite  1 0 0, C olumbu s , Oh io 43 21 5 -3 74 6 or  by  c a llin g ( 61 4)  22 2- 
5 85 3.

P lan mem bers  ar e req uired  to co n tr ib u te 9  p ercen t o f th eir  an nu al co vered  s alar y  and  th e No r th  O lms ted City D is tr ict is
r eq uired  to con tr ib u te at an actuarially deter min ed  r ate.  Th e cu rr ent r ate is 1 4 per cent o f  ann u al cov ered p ay ro ll.  Th e
con tr ib u tion  requ ir ements  o f plan mem bers  an d em p lo yers  ar e estab lis hed and  m ay  be am en ded, up  to  s tatu tor y
m ax im um  am ou n ts , by  th e S ERS’  Retirem en t Bo ard .  Th e No r th  O lms ted City D is tr ict’s  co ntribu tio ns  to  S ERS  f or  th e
y ears  en ded J un e 30 , 2 00 2 , 20 01 , and  20 00  w ere $  83 8,20 0 , $ 7 95 ,5 00 , and  $ 73 5,0 00 , r es pectively .  Th e f ull amo un t
h as  b een  con tribu ted  f or  20 01  an d 20 0 0.  Fo r  2 00 2 , $ 36 1 ,0 00  (4 3%) h as  b een  con tribu ted  w ith  the remain d er  b ein g
r ef lected as  an  interg ov ern mental pay ab le.
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NOTE 12 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

B.  S TATE TEA CH ERS  RETIREMENT SY STEM (S TRS )

The N or th Olm sted  City  S cho ol D istrict co ntr ib utes to  th e State Teachers  Retirem en t S ys tem o f Oh io (S TRS ), a cos t- 
s haring  mu ltiple em p lo yer  p ub lic emp loy ee r etirem en t sy s tem adm in is ter ed  by  the State Teach ers  Retiremen t Bo ard .
S TRS is  a statewide retir em en t p lan f or  licens ed  teacher s an d  o th er  facu lty  m em b er s emp lo yed  in the p ub lic s cho ols o f
O hio or  an y s ch oo l, co llege, un ivers ity , in s titu tio n or  other  agency  con tro lled , m an aged an d  s up p or ted, in  w h ole or  in 
p ar t, b y  the state o r an y  p olitical s ub divis io n thereof .

P lan op tio ns  – Ef fective Ju ly  1 , 2 00 1 , tw o n ew  p lan  o ption s w er e of f er ed  to  s elected  m em b er s.  New  m emb er s h av e a
cho ice o f th r ee r etiremen t plan  op tio ns .  In  add ition  to  the Defined  Ben efit (D B)  P lan , new  m em ber s ar e o ff er ed a
D ef in ed  Co ntr ib utio n  ( DC)  P lan and  a Co mb in ed Plan.  Th e D C P lan allow s m em bers  to  in vest all th eir  m em b er 
con tr ib u tion s  and  em ploy er co ntr ib ution s eq u al to  1 0.5% of  earn ed  co mp en s atio n.  The Co mb in ed Plan of fer s featu res
o f th e D C Plan an d the D B plan .  In  th e Co m bined  P lan, m em ber con tr ibu tion s  are in vested by  th e mem ber, an d
emp lo yer  con tribu tio ns  ar e us ed  to  f u nd  the defin ed  b en efit p ay ment at a redu ced  lev el fr om  th e r eg ular  D B Plan .
Con tr ib u tion s  into the D C P lan and  th e Co mb ined P lan ar e cred ited  to  m em b er  acco un ts  as  emp loy er s  s ub mit their
p ay ro ll in fo r mation  to  S TRS  O hio , gen er ally  on  a b i- week ly bas is .  DC and  Co mb in ed Plan memb ers  w ill tran sf er  to 
the D ef ined Ben ef it Plan  du ring  th eir  f if th  year  of  m em b er sh ip un les s th ey perm anently select th e D C or  Co mb ined
P lan.

Existin g  m em b er s with les s th an  five year s o f ser vice cr ed it as  o f J un e 3 0, 2 00 1, w ere g iven th e o ption  o f m ak in g  a
o ne-tim e irr evo cable d ecision  to  tran sf er  th eir accou nt balan ces fr o m th e existing  D B Plan  in to  th e DC Plan  or  the
Com bined  P lan .  This  o ption  exp ired o n Decem ber 3 1, 2 00 1 .

D B Plan  Ben ef its  – Plan  benef its ar e establis hed  u nd er Ch ap ter  3 3 07  o f the Revised Cod e.  Any  m emb er  may retir e
w ho  h as  (i) five year s  o f ser vice cr ed it an d attained  age 60 ; (ii) 25  year s o f ser vice cr ed it an d attained  age 5 5 ; or  (iii) 3 0
y ears  o f  s er v ice cr edit r eg ar dless  o f  age.  Th e ann ual r etir ement allo wan ce, pay ab le fo r lif e , is th e g reater of  th e
“fo rm ula b en efit” o r  the “m on ey - pu rch as e ben ef it” calcu latio n .  Und er th e “fo rm u la b enefit”, the retirem en t allow an ce
is based  o n y ears  o f  cred ited  s erv ice and  f inal average salar y, w hich is  th e av erage of  the memb er’ s th r ee h igh es t s alar y 
y ears .  Th e ann ual allow ance is  calcu lated b y us ing  a b ase p ercen tag e of  2.2% m u ltip lied by  th e total n u mb er  of  y ears 
s er vice cr ed it (includ in g  O hio- v alued  p ur ch ased credit)  times  the f inal average salar y.  Th e 3 1s t year  o f  ear n ed  O hio 
s er vice cr ed it is  calculated at 2.5%.  An  ad ditio nal on e-ten th of  a percent is add ed  to  the calcu lation  fo r every  y ear  o f 
ear ned O hio s er vice ov er  31  y ear s (2 .6% f or  32  y ear s, 2 .7% f o r 33  y ear s and  s o o n)  u n til 10 0 % of  final averag e salar y
is reach ed .  Fo r mem bers  with  3 5  o r m or e years  o f  O hio con tr ibu ting  serv ice, th e f ir s t 30  y ear s w ill be calcu lated at
2 .5 % in s tead  of  2 .2 %.  Un der th e “mo n ey -p ur chase benefit” calcu latio n, a memb er ’ s lif etim e con tr ibu tion s  p lu s  inter est
at sp ecified  rates are m atched b y an  eq ual amo un t f ro m o th er  STRS  O h io  f u nd s.  This total is  then  d iv id ed by  an 
actuarially d eter min ed  an nu ity f acto r  to deter min e th e m ax im u m an nu al retir em en t allo wance.

D C Plan  Ben ef its  – Benef its are establis h ed  u nd er section s 3 30 7.8 0 to  3 3 07 .8 9  o f th e Rev ised Co d e.  For  m em b er s w ho 
s elect the D C P lan, all m em ber con tr ibu tion s  and  em ploy er co n tr ib ution s at rate of  1 0 .5 % ar e p laced  in an in v es tm en t
accou nt.  Th e m em ber  d eterm in es  ho w to allo cate the m em b er  an d em plo yer m on ey  am on g n in e in v es tm ent cho ices.
A  m em ber  is eligible to r eceive a retir em en t b en efit at ag e 5 0 an d ter min atio n o f em p lo ym en t.  Th e memb er may  elect
to receive a lifetim e mo n th ly  an nu ity  o r a lum p- s um  w ith dr aw al.  Em p lo yer  con tr ibu tio ns  into  m em b er s’  acco un ts ar e
v es ted after  th e fir st an nivers ary  o f  the f irs t d ay  o f p aid s er vice.  Mem bers  in  the DC P lan  w ho  beco me disab led ar e
entitled  o nly  to th eir  acco un t b alan ce.  If  a mem ber dies bef or e retir em ent b en efits  begin, th e m em bers  desig nated
b en ef iciar y is en titled to receive th e memb ers  acco un t b alan ce.
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NOTE 12 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

B.  S TATE TEA CH ERS  RETIREMENT SY STEM (S TRS ) (con tin ued) 

Com bined  P lan  Ben ef its  – Mem ber con tr ibu tion s  are allo cated  b y  the m emb er , and  em ploy er co ntr ib ution s ar e u sed  to
f un d a d ef in ed benef it p aym en t.  A m emb er ’s  defin ed  b en efit is deter mined  b y mu ltiply in g 1% of  th e memb er’ s f in al
average salar y by  th e mem ber’ s y ear’ s o f ser vice cr ed it.  Th e d ef in ed benef it p o rtio n o f th e Com bin ed  P lan  p ay m en t is
p ay ab le to  a memb er  on  o r  after  ag e 6 0.  Th e d ef ined co n tr ib u tion  p o rtio n  o f th e acco un t may  b e tak en  as  a lu mp  s um 
o r co nv erted  to  a lifetim e mo nth ly  an nu ity at ag e 5 0.

Eligible f acu lty of  Oh io ’ s pu blic co lleges and  u n iv er sities m ay  cho o se to  enr oll in either S TRS O hio or  an  altern ative
r etir em ent p lan  ( ARP ) of f er ed  b y  their em plo yer.  Emp lo y ees h av e 12 0  d ay s  f ro m their  em ploy m en t d ate to  select a
r etir em ent p lan .

A  r etir ee of  STRS  O h io  o r  ano th er Oh io pu blic retir em en t s ys tem  is eligib le f or  reem p lo ym en t as a teach er fo llo wing 
the elap se o f  two  m o nths  fr om  th e date of  r etirem en t.  Con tr ib u tion s  are m ade b y  the r eemp lo y ed  memb er  an d
emp lo yer  d ur ing  the reem p lo ym en t.  Up on  ter m in ation  o f r eemp loy ment or  ag e 65 , w hich ever co m es  later, th e retir ee
is elig ible f or  a m o ney- p ur ch as e b en efit or  a lu m p- su m p ay men t in  ad ditio n to  th e or iginal r etir ement allo wan ce.

P rior  to  F eb r uary  1 , 2 00 2 , benef its w er e in creas ed an nu ally b y th e g reater of  th e am o un t of  th e chang e in th e Con su m er 
P rice I n dex ( CP I)  o r  the cu mu lativ e CPI  incr ease since r etir ement, les s p reviou s  cos t-o f- liv in g increas es, u p  to a
m ax im um  of  3 % o f th e o rig in al b ase b enefit.  Eff ectiv e F eb ru ary  1 , 2 00 2, benefits ar e increased ann ually  b y 3 % of  th e
o riginal b as e amo un t, reg ar dles s  o f the chan ge in  the CP I.

The D ef ined Ben ef it an d Com bined  P lan s of fer  access  to h ealth  car e cov er age to r etir ees  w ho  participated  in the p lan s
and  their dep en dents .  Co verage un der  the cu rr en t p ro gr am in clu des h os pitalization , p hy sician fees, p res cr ip tio n dr u gs 
and  p ar tial r eimb ur s em en t o f mo n th ly  Medicar e Par t B pr emium s .

A  d ef in ed Ben ef it o r  Com b in ed  P lan  m emb er  w ith  f ive o r m or e y ears ’ credited  s er v ice w ho  b eco mes d is ab led  m ay 
q ualify  fo r a d is ab ility  benefit.  Elig ib le sp ou s e an d d ep en d en ts  o f  thes e activ e mem bers  w h o die b ef or e r etirement may
q ualify  fo r s ur vivo r  b en efits .  A death  b en efit o f $ 1,0 00  is  p ay ab le to  th e ben ef iciar y of  each  deceas ed retir ed  m emb er 
w ho  p ar ticip ated in  th e D ef in ed  Benef it P lan .  D eath  b enefit cov er age u p  to $ 2 ,0 00  can be pu rch as ed  b y  p ar ticip an ts in 
the D B, D C or  Co mb ined Plans .  Variou s  o th er benef its are available to mem ber’ s  b en ef iciar ies .

Chapter  33 07  of  the Revis ed  Cod e p ro v id es  s tatuto ry  auth or ity  f or  m emb er  an d em p lo yer  con tr ibu tio ns .  Co ntrib utio n
r ates  ar e es tab lish ed by  th e State Teachers  Retir em en t Board , u po n r ecom m en datio n of  its co n su lting  actu ar y, no t to 
exceed s tatu tor y max im um  rates o f 10 % f or  m emb er s  and  1 4 % fo r  emp lo y er s.

Con tr ib u tion  requ ir ements  and  th e co n tr ib ution s actually  m ad e f or  th e fis cal year en d ed  J un e 3 0, 20 02  w ere 9 .3% o f
cov er ed  payr o ll f or  memb ers  and  14 % f or  emp loy er s .  The No rth  O lm sted City Scho o l Dis tr ict's  con tribu tio n to  STRS 
f or  the year s  end ed  Ju ne 30 , 20 0 2, 2 0 01 , an d  2 00 0  w er e $  2 ,9 9 6,50 0, $ 2,8 62 ,1 00 , and  $ 2,71 7 ,8 00 , r es pectively.  Th e
f ull am o un t h as  b een  con tribu ted  f or  20 01  an d 20 0 0.  Fo r  2 00 2 , $ 2,5 07 ,4 0 0 (8 4%)  h as  been  co ntrib uted  w ith  th e
r em aind er being  r ep o rted  as  a liab ility  w ith in  th e resp ectiv e f un ds .

STRS Ohio issues a stand-alone financial report.  Copies of STRS Ohio’s 2002 Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report can be requested by writing STRS Ohio , 275 E. Broad St., Columbus, Ohio 43215-3371, or by calling 614-
227-4090.
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NOTE 13 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A .  S CH OO L EMP LO Y EES RETIREMENT S YS TEM

The O hio  Rev ised Co d e giv es  the Scho o l Em plo yees  Retirem en t S ys tem ( SERS )  the d iscretio nary  au th o rity  to  p ro v id e
p os tr etiremen t health car e to  r etirees an d their  depend ents.  Cov er age is  m ad e available to  serv ice r etirees  with  ten or 
m or e years  o f  q ualif ying  serv ice cred it, dis ab ility  and  su rv ivo r ben ef it recipients.  Mem ber s retir in g o n or  af ter A ug us t
1 , 19 89  with  less  th an  tw en ty -f ive y ear s of  serv ice cred it m u st p ay  a po r tion  o f  their pr em ium  f o r health car e.  Th e
p or tion  is  b ased on  year s  o f ser vice, u p to  a max im um  o f  7 5% of  the pr em ium .

After  th e alloc atio n  for  ba sic b en efits , th e  r ema in de r o f th e  e mp lo y er 's  co ntrib utio n  is alloc ate d to  p r ov id ing 
h ea lth c ar e b en efits .  At J un e 3 0, 2 0 02 , th e  h ea lth ca re  allo c atio n r ate is 8.54 %.  In  a dd ition , SER S le v ie s a 
s ur ch ar g e to  fu nd  h e alth  ca re  b e ne fits eq ua l to 1 4% o f the  d iffer en c e be twe en  a  min imu m pa y  a nd  th e
membe r' s  p ay , p ro -r a te d for  p ar tia l s er vice  cr ed it.  Fo r  fis c al 2 00 2 , th e  min imu m pa y  h as  b e en  e s ta blis h ed 
a s $ 12 ,40 0.  The  s u rc ha r ge  r ate  a dd e d to  th e un a lloc ate d po r tion  o f the  14 % emp lo ye r  c on tr ibu tio n ra te 
p ro vide s  for  ma in te n an ce  of the  as se t tar ge t lev e l fo r the  h e alth  c a re  fu nd .

H ealth car e b en ef its  are financed on  a pay- as- yo u -g o bas is .  Th e tar get lev el f o r th e h ealth  car e r es er v e is  15 0% o f 
ann ual h ealth  car e exp en s es .  Ex pens es fo r h ealth  car e at Ju n e 30 , 2 00 2 w er e $ 1 82 ,9 4 6,77 7 and  th e targ et lev el w as  $
2 74 .4  m illio n .  A t J un e 3 0, 2 00 2 , th e Retir ement Sy stem 's net ass ets available fo r  p ay m en t of  health care benef its was  $ 
3 35 .2  m illio n .

The n um b er  o f  b en ef it recip ients  r eceiv in g h ealth  car e b en ef its  is app ro x im ately  5 0,0 00 .  Th e po r tion  o f  the District's
con tr ib u tion s  that w er e u sed to  fu nd  p os temp loy men t benef its amo un ted  to $  5 95 ,1 0 0.

B.  S TA TE TEACHERS RETI REMEN T S YS TEM

S tate Teacher s Retir em en t S ys tem  o f O hio (S TRS  O h io ) pr o vides  acces s  to h ealth car e b en ef its  to r etir ees  w ho 
p ar ticip ated  in  the Defin ed  Ben efit o r Co mb ined P lans  an d th eir  d ep end en ts.  Co v er ag e u nd er  th e cur rent pr og r am 
inclu des  h os p italization , p hy sicians ' f ees, pr es criptio n  d ru g s an d p ar tial reim b ur sem en t of  mo nth ly  Med icare Part B
p remium s .  Pu rs uant to  Revised Cod e ( R.C.), th e S tate Teacher s Retir em en t Board  (the bo ar d)  has d is cr etion ar y 
autho rity ov er ho w m uch, if  any , o f the ass o ciated health car e co sts  w ill b e ab s or bed  b y STRS Oh io.  All b en efit
r ecip ien ts  p ay a po r tion  of  the health care co st in  the fo rm  of  a m o nthly  p remiu m.

The Rev ised Cod e gr ants autho rity to  STRS  O h io  to  p ro vid e health car e co v er ag e to ben ef it r ecipients, s p ou ses , an d
d ep en den ts .  By  O hio  law , the co st o f  the co verag e paid  fr om  STRS  O h io  f u nd s sh all b e inclu d ed  in  the em ploy er
con tr ib u tion  rate, cur ren tly 1 4% o f cov er ed payr o ll.

The Retiremen t Bo ar d  allo cates emp lo y er  con tribu tio ns  to  the Health  Care Stab ilizatio n Fu nd  fr om  wh ich h ealth  car e
b en ef its  are paid .  Fo r the f is cal y ear  end ed Ju n e 30 , 2 00 2, th e bo ard  allo cated  emp loy er  co ntrib utio ns  eq ual to 4.5 % of 
cov er ed  payr o ll to the H ealth  Care S tab ilization  Fu nd .  Ef fective, J uly 1 , 20 02 , 1 % o f co ver ed  p ayr oll w ill b e allo cated 
to th e f un d.  The b alance in th e H ealth  Car e S tab ilization  F u nd  w as  $ 3.0 11  b illio n o n Ju ne 30 , 2 00 2.

F or  the year  en ded J un e 3 0, 2 00 2 , net h ealth  car e cos ts  paid  by  S TRS  O hio  w er e $  3 54 ,69 7,00 0 .  Th er e wer e 10 5 ,3 00 
eligible b en efit recip ien ts .
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NOTE 14 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Changes in the District’s long-term obligations during fiscal year 2002 were as follows:

Balance Balance Amounts Due
June 30, 2001 Increase Decrease June 30, 2002  In One Year

Notes payable
1997, 5%,  Energy conservation  $      125,301    $               -  $    125,301  $                  -  $                -
1998, 5%,  Bus acquisition       142,000                -       26,000       116,000         27,000

Compensated absences, restated      3,329,248       551,466       285,790      3,594,924       547,930
Capital lease           48,269                  -         48,269                    -                  -

 $   3,644,818  $    551,466  $    485,360  $   3,710,924  $    574,930

In 1997, the District issued $ 465,000 notes payable for retro-fitting of lighting for the purpose of energy
conservation.  In 1998 the District issued $ 212,000 notes payable for the acquisition of school busses.

The overall debt margin of the District is $ 73,235,900 with an unvoted debt margin of $ 813,700.
Principal and interest requirements to retire the energy conservation notes outstanding at June 30, 2002,
were as follows:

Fiscal
Year Ending Principal Interest Total

2003  $       27,000  $         5,800  $       32,800
2004           28,000             4,450           32,450
2005           29,000             3,050           32,050
2006           32,000             1,600           33,600
Totals  $     116,000  $       14,900  $     130,900

Notes payable will be repaid from the Debt Service Fund.  The capital lease obligation was repaid from
the General Fund.  Compensated absences will be repaid from the funds from which employees’ salaries
are paid.

NOTE 15 – OPERATING LEASES

The D is trict is  o bligated  u nd er  certain  leas es  acco un ted  f or  as  o per atin g  leases .  Op er atin g  leas es  d o n ot g ive r is e to
p ro perty  r ig h ts  o r lease ob ligatio ns , and  th er ef o re, th e r es u lts of  th e lease ag reem ents ar e n ot reflected  in  the D istrict's
accou nt gr ou p s.  Du r in g 2 00 2, ex pend itu res f or  o p er atin g  leas es  totaled $  1 71 ,0 2 0.

The  follow in g  is a s ch ed u le  o f futur e  min imu m re n ta l pa y me nts  r eq uir ed  u n de r op e ra tin g le as e s th a t ha ve 
initial or  r e ma in in g  n on ca nc e la ble  lea se  te rms  in ex c es s o f on e y ea r a s of J u ne  3 0 , 20 02 .

Year ending
June 30, Amount

2003  $     102,677
2004           64,610
2005           63,940
2006           39,150
2007                    -

Future minimum lease payments  $     270,377
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NOTE 16 – TAX ANTICIPATION NOTES

On July 2, 2001 the District issued tax anticipation notes through the Treasurer of the State of Ohio’s School District Cash
Flow Financing Program.  The purpose of the notes was to provide adequate liquidity during the year.  The notes were
repaid on June 28, 2002.

Balance Balance
June 30, 2001 Increase Decrease June 30, 2002

Tax anticipation notes, 3.31%  $                -  $   2,728,000  $   2,728,000  $                  -

NOTE 17 - SET-ASIDES

The District is required by State statute to annually set aside, in the General Fund, an amount based on a statutory
formula for the purchase of textbooks and other instructional materials, and an equal amount for the acquisition and
construction of capital improvements.  Amounts not spent by the end of the fiscal year or offset by similarly
restricted resources received during the year must be held in cash at year end.  These amounts must be carried
forward and used for the same purposes in future years.  In addition, the District has set aside money for budget
stabilization.

The following cash basis information identifies the changes in the fund balance reserves for textbooks, capital
improvements, and budget stabilization during fiscal year 2002.

Capital Budget
Textbook Maintenance Stabilization

Balance, July 1, 2001  $                -  $                -  $     223,073
Required set aside         580,540         580,540                    -
Offset credits                    -        (580,540)                    -
Qualifying expenditures        (580,540)                    -                    -

Balance June 30, 2002  $                -  $                -  $     223,073

Expenditures and offset credits for textbooks and capital maintenance during the year were $1,724,054 and
$1,036,413, respectively, which exceeded the required set-aside and the reserve balance.  Textbook expenditures
have exceeded statutory requirements by $1,143,514 which may be used as offset credits for future years’ set aside
requirements.
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NOTE 18 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

A .  LAK E ERI E ED U CA TI ON  CO MP U TER AS S OCIA TIO N

The Lak e Erie Edu catio nal Com pu ter  A s so ciation  ( LEECA ) is a jointly  go ver ned or g an ization  co mp ris ed  o f thirty 
s ch oo l d is tr icts.  The jo in tly g ov er n ed  o rg anizatio n was  f or m ed  to p ro vid e data pr ocess in g s er vices  f or  acco u ntin g,
adm in is trativ e an d ins tr u ctio nal f un ction s o f mem ber dis tr icts.  Each of  th e go v er nm ents of  th es e d is tr icts s up po rts 
LEECA  b ased u po n a p er  p u pil ch arg e d ep en den t up o n th e s of tw are p ack ag es  utilized.  The LEECA as s em bly con sis ts 
o f a su p er in ten dent or  d esign ated rep resentative fr om  each  p ar ticip atin g  d is tr ict an d a rep resen tative fr om  th e fis cal
agent.

L EECA is  g ov e rn ed  b y  a  b o ar d of dire c to rs  c h os en  fr om th e ge n er al me mb er s hip of th e L EECA a s se mb ly.
The  b oa r d of dire cto rs  c o ns is ts  of a  re pr es e ntative  fro m the  fisc al ag en t, th e c ha ir man  o f e ac h o pe ra tin g
c ommitte e, a n d at le as t o ne  a ss e mb ly  me mb er  fr om ea ch  c o un ty  fr om w h ic h p ar ticip atin g  d is tr icts a re 
loc ated .  Fin an cial in fo r ma tion  ca n b e ob ta ine d b y co nta ctin g  the  Tr ea su r er  a t the  Ed uc atio n al Se rv ic e
C en te r o f Lo r ain Co u nty, wh ic h s er ve s  a s fis ca l a ge nt, loc ate d at 1 8 85  L a ke  Ave n ue , Ely ria, Oh io  44 03 5.
D ur in g the  y e ar  e nd e d Ju n e 30 , 2 00 2, th e Dis tr ic t p aid $  3 7,1 10  to L EECA.

B.  P OLARIS  CA REER CENTER

The P olaris Car eer Cen ter  is a s ep ar ate b od y  p olitic an d  cor p or ate, es tab lish ed  by  th e Oh io  Revis ed  Cod e to p ro vide fo r
the v ocation al an d s pecial need s  o f the s tu d en ts .  Its Board  of  Edu catio n  con sis ts  o f  r ep res en tativ es  f r om  th e bo ar d  o f
each par ticip atin g s ch oo l d is tr ict.  Th e Bo ard  is  r es po n sible f or  ap pr ov ing  its  ow n b ud gets , app o in ting  pers o nn el, and 
accou nting  an d finan ce r elated activ ities .  No rth  O lm sted City Scho o l Dis tr ict s tu den ts  m ay  atten d th e v ocation al
s ch oo l.  Each  s ch oo l d is trict's  co ntr ol is lim ited to  its rep resentation  on  the Bo ar d .  Fin ancial inf or m atio n  can  b e
o btained  b y con tacting  th e Po lar is  Career  Center , 7 28 5 O ld  O ak Blvd ., Mid dleb u rg  H eig hts, Oh io  44 13 0.

C.  N ORTH  O LMS TED  CITY S CH OO LS ED UCA TI ON  FO UN DA TIO N

The N or th Olm sted  City  S cho ols Edu catio n Fo u nd ation  ( Fo u nd ation ) is  a jo intly  g o vern ed or gan ization  establis h ed  b y
the O hio  Rev ised Co d e to  su pp or t and  en hance edu catio nal o pp o rtun ities  f o r th e y ou th  of  the No rth  O lm sted
Com mu nity.  The tru s tees  of  the Fo un d atio n con sis t of  f ive ex  o ff icio tr u stees and  u p  to fif teen  memb er s  s elected  b y  a
n om in ating  co mm ittee app o in ted b y th e ex of f icio  tr us tees.

The ex o ff icio tr us tees are com p os ed  of  the fo llo wing  in divid uals : the S u perintend en t o f th e N or th Olms ted  City  S ch o ol
D is tr ict, a m em ber o f th e N or th  Olms ted  Boar d of  Ed ucation , a m em ber  o f the N or th Olm sted  P TA Co u ncil, a m em b er 
o f th e N or th  Olms ted  City  S ch oo ls' F inancial A dv iso ry  Bo ar d, an d a m em ber  o f th e Com m un ity Edu catio n Ad v is or y 
Board .  All tru stees  are vo ting  memb ers .  Th e Fo u nd atio n  is r es po ns ible f or  app r ov in g  its  o w n bu d gets , app oin ting 
p er so nn el, cr eation  of  co mm ittees, an d acco u ntin g  and  f inancial r elated activ ities .  Financial in fo rm ation  can be
o btained  b y con tacting  N icko las  Mazzo ne , c/o The N o rth Olm sted  Bo ar d o f Ed u cation , 2 41 0 0 Palm  Dr iv e, No rth 
O lm sted , O hio  4 40 70 .
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N OTE 18  J OI NTLY  GO VERNED ORG AN IZA TI ON S (con tin ued) 

D .  O HI O SCH OO LS  CO UN CI L

The O hio  S ch o ols Co u ncil (Cou ncil)  is  a join tly g ov er ned  o rg anizatio n am o ng  eig h ty -th ree sch oo l d is tr icts.  The
Cou ncil was f or med to of f er  s up p lies  an d ser vices  at th e low est p os s ib le co st to  the memb er  distr icts .  Each  district
s up po rts  the Co un cil b y p ay in g an an n ual par ticip atio n f ee f o r th e s er vices  p ro v id ed .  Th e Cou ncil's Bo ard  co ns is ts  of 
s ev en  s u perin tend en ts of  th e par ticip atin g d is tr icts wh o se term  r otates every  y ear .  Th e deg ree o f co ntr ol ex er cised  b y
any  s ch o ol d istrict is  limited to its  r ep res en tatio n on  th e Board .  In  f iscal y ear  2 0 02  the Distr ict paid $ 1 ,7 17  to  the
Cou ncil.

The N or th Olm sted  City  S cho ols p ar ticip ates  in  th e Co un cil’s  electr ic pu r ch as e p ro gr am  wh ich  w as  im plem ented 
d ur in g f is cal y ear 2 00 0.  The p r og ram  allow s  s ch o ol d is tricts  to pu r ch as e electr icity  at red uced  rates f or  a period  of 
eig ht y ear s thr ou gh  En er g y Acqu isitio n Co rp o ratio n (Cor p or ation ), a no n- p ro fit cor po r atio n w ith a s elf- app oin ting 
b oard  o f  tru s tees .  Th e Cor po ratio n iss ued $  1 19 ,14 0,00 0  o f n otes  to  p repu rch as e eig ht y ear s o f electricity fr om 
Clevelan d Electric I llum inating  (CEI ) .  The participatin g sch oo l dis tr icts ar e n ot o b ligated  in any  m an n er  f o r th is  debt.
I f a par ticip atin g s ch oo l d is tr ict term in ates th eir  agr eem en t d ur in g  the eigh t y ear p er io d, th ey  ar e req uired  to rep ay  th e
s av in gs  to  CEI an d CEI  w ill r ef u nd  th e remaining  pr ep ay m en t r elated  to  th at p ar ticip ant to Energ y  A cq uis itio n 
Cor po ratio n.

The N or th Olm sted  City  S cho ols p ar ticip ates  in  th e Co un cil’s  pr ep aid  n atu ral gas  p ro gr am  wh ich  w as  im plem ented 
d ur in g f is cal y ear 2 00 0.  This p ro gr am allo w s sch oo l dis tr icts to  p u rchas e natu r al g as at r edu ced  r ates , if the s ch o ol
d is tr icts will co mm it to  participatin g fo r a twelv e y ear p er io d.  The participants  m ak e m on th ly paym ents b as ed  o n 
estim ated us age.  Each  J u ne thes e es tim ated  paym ents ar e com p ar ed  to  their actu al us age and  an y n eces sar y
adjus tm ents are m ad e.

The City  o f H am ilto n , a m un icip al co r po ratio n an d  p olitical s ub divis io n d uly or g an ized an d existing  u nd er th e law s o f
the S tate of  Oh io , iss ued  $  8 9,4 50 ,0 0 0 in  d ebt to  p ur ch ase tw elve y ear s o f natu r al g as fr om  CMS Energ y Cor po r atio n
f or  the participants .  Th e participatin g sch oo l d is tr icts ar e n ot o b ligated  in any  m ann er  f o r th is debt.  If  a participatin g
s ch oo l d is tr ict ter m in ates its agr eem en t, th e dis tr ict is en titled to recov er  th at am ou nt, if an y , of  its co n tr ib ution s to th e
o peratin g fu n d wh ich  are no t en cum ber ed  f or  its s hare o f  p ro g ram ad m in is trative co sts .

The N or th Olm sted  City  S cho ols als o p ar ticip ates  in  the Co un cil's  g r ou p lif e in s ur an ce an d s ch oo l b us  acqu is ition 
p ro gr am s .  Financial inf o rm atio n  can  be o btain ed  by  con tactin g Jo sep h Les ak , Execu tiv e Dir ecto r  at th e O hio  S ch oo ls
Cou ncil at 1 5 5 Center Ro ad, Bed f or d, Oh io  4 4 14 6- 2 73 8.

NOTE 19 - SCHOOL FOUNDATION PROGRAM

On December 11, 2002, the Ohio Supreme Court issued its latest opinion regarding the State’s school funding plan.
The decision reaffirmed earlier decisions that Ohio’s current school funding plan is unconstitutional.  The Supreme
court relinquished jurisdiction over the case and directed “…the Ohio General Assembly to enact a school funding
scheme that is thorough and efficient…”.  The District is currently unable to determine what effect, if any, this
decision will have on its future State funding and its financial operations.
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NOTE 20 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

During the year ended June 30, 2002, the general fund transferred $ 55,000 to the food service fund to provide for
the payment of expenditures and maintain the food service operations for students.  A transfer of $ 161,578 was
made from the general fund to the debt service fund for payment of principal and interest on notes payable, and a
transfer of $ 15,000 was made from the general fund to the rotary fund to subsidize the sale of public transportation
tickets to students.

The public support service fund made a transfer of $ 23,648 to the general fund for service fee revenue collected in
the prior year.

NOTE 21 - CONTINGENCIES

The District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants.  The expenditure of
funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant
agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies.

Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable
funds.  However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect
on the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 2002.

NOTE 22 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 1, 2002 the District issued $ 2,521,000 tax anticipation notes, with an interest rate of 2.27%,
through the Treasurer of the State of Ohio’s School District Cash Flow Financing Program.  The notes are
scheduled to mature on June 30, 2003.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are established to account for revenues from specific sources which are legally,
or otherwise, are restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Food Service Fund - This fund accounts for all transactions related to the operations of the School District’s
food service program which provides lunches to students and the staff.

Sanford / Kraley Art – This fund accounts for local revenues to support scholarships and curriculum
improvements.

Uniform School Supplies – This fund accounts for the operations of a student-managed bookstore at the
high school.

Adult Education Fund – This fund accounts for revenues and expenses related to the provision of credit and
non-credit classes to the community.

Rotary Fund – This fund accounts for all revenues and expenses related to telephone commissions and
vending machines at the District high school, all revenues and expenses related to bus maintenance and
repair services provided to other school districts, and all revenues and expenses related to the purchase and
resale of city transit system bus tickets for student transportation.

Public Support Service Fund – This fund accounts for school site sales projects, field trips, assemblies, and
other extra-curricular activity costs.

Other Grants Fund – This fund accounts for various local grants received to enhance educational programs
of the district.

Data Communications Support Fund – This fund accounts for State revenue received for the installation
and ongoing support of data communication links to the Statewide Network.

Athletic Fund – This fund accounts for gate receipts and fund raising activities and all operating costs
(except supplemental coaching contracts) of the District’s Athletic Program.

Auxiliary Services Fund – This fund accounts for State funds received for non-public schools located
within the school district as provided by state law.  Funds are used primarily for educational supplies,
materials, and testing.

Education M.I.S. Fund – This fund accounts for revenues provided by the State of Ohio to support
expenditures for development of a statewide management information system required by Senate Bill 140.

Data Communications Fund – This fund provides support costs for data communication links to connect a
school district electronically to the data acquisition site.

School Net Professional Development Fund – This fund accounts for workstations and training of
personnel and for wiring upgrades at the individual schools.

Ohio Reads – This fund accounts for the State revenue received to improve reading performance, especially
on the fourth grade reading proficiency test.

Summer School Subsidy – This fund accounts for the State revenue received under the Ohio Reads
Summer Reading Program to improve reading skills of elementary students.



55

Parent Mentor Program – This fund accounts for state revenue received for the purpose of providing
training and technical assistance to parents of special education need students.

Alternative Education – This fund is used to account for alternative educational programs for existing and
new at-risk and delinquent youth.

Miscellaneous State Grants – This fund is used to account for various monies received from the State of
Ohio to develop and support a parent mentoring program, a safe-school hotline, and school improvement
incentive programs.

Adult Basic Education – This fund accounts for Federal monies used to provide programs in reading,
writing, and math competency for non-diploma adults.

Eisenhower Math Fund – This fund accounts for Federal monies to improve the skills of teachers and
instruction in learning; and increase the access of all students to that instruction.

Title VIB Fund – This fund accounts for Federal revenues in support of program expenditures related to
Special Education.

Title I Fund – This fund accounts for Federal monies to implement a variety of programs intended to
provide supplemental instruction for children of low income families identified as educationally
disadvantaged.

Title 6 Fund – This fund accounts for Federal revenues which support the implementation of a variety of
programs (drug/alcohol abuse, computer education) to profit schools within the community.

Drug Free School Fund – This fund accounts for Federal revenues used to implement programs to educate
and encourage students to live lives free of drug dependency.

Preschool Fund – This fund accounts for Federal monies supporting programs for handicapped services for
children ages 2-5 to ready them for the school environment.

Classroom Reduction – This fund accounts for Federal revenue used to hire additional teachers in grade 1
through 3.

Miscellaneous Federal Grants Fund – This fund is used to account for various federally funded programs
under the Serve and Learn American Grant Program.

DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of long-term
debt principal, interest, and related costs.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds).

Permanent Improvements Fund – This fund accounts for monies raised through a tax levy and restricted in
use for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital facilities and equipment.

Video Distance Learning – This fund accounts for monies received from the State of Ohio for purchase of
video conferencing equipment and technology.
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 Nonmajor  Nonmajor  Nonmajor  Total
 Special  Debt  Capital  Nonmajor

 Revenue  Service  Projects  Governmental
 Funds  Fund  Funds  Funds

Assets
Equity in pooled cash  $           785,906  $                      -  $           796,776  $        1,582,682
Receivables, net of allowance

Taxes, current                          -                          -            1,058,276            1,058,276
Taxes, delinquent                          -                          -                 33,096                 33,096
Accounts and other                 22,691                          -                          -                 22,691

Due from other governments                 20,541                          -                          -                 20,541
Inventories and supplies                 37,638                          -                          -                 37,638

Total assets  $           866,776  $                      -  $        1,888,148  $        2,754,924

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities

Accounts and contracts payable  $             13,154  $                      -  $               2,287  $             15,441
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits                 93,460                          -                          -                 93,460
Due to other governments                 28,827                          -                          -                 28,827
Interfund payable                 44,337                          -                          -                 44,337
Deferred revenue

Taxes                 20,541                          -               902,748               923,289

Total liabilities               200,319                          -               905,035            1,105,354

Fund balances
Reserved for inventories                 37,638                          -                          -                 37,638
Reserved for property taxes                          -                          -               188,624               188,624
Reserved for encumbrances               109,953                          -               278,272               388,225
Unreserved, reported in

Special Revenue Funds               518,866               518,866
Capital Projects Funds                          -                          -               516,217               516,217

Total fund balances               666,457                          -               983,113            1,649,570

Total liabilities and fund balances  $           866,776  $                      -  $        1,888,148  $        2,754,924
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 Nonmajor  Nonmajor  Nonmajor  Total
 Special  Debt  Capital  Nonmajor

 Revenue  Service  Projects  Governmental
 Funds  Fund  Funds  Funds

Revenues
Taxes  $                      -  $                      -  $        1,158,664  $        1,158,664
Tuition and fees                 33,223                          -                          -                 33,223
Interest                      957                 89,294                   3,704                 93,955
Intergovernmental            2,071,448                          -               133,720            2,205,168
Charges for services            1,005,577                          -                          -            1,005,577
Extracurricular               147,471                          -                          -               147,471
Other                 84,037                          -                          -                 84,037

Total revenues            3,342,713                 89,294            1,296,088            4,728,095

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Regular               566,813                          -                   6,482               573,295
Special               317,617                          -                          -               317,617
Vocational                 44,000                          -                          -                 44,000
Adult/continuing                 92,213                          -                          -                 92,213

Supporting services
Pupil                 71,762                          -                          -                 71,762
Instructional staff                   3,973                          -                          -                   3,973
Administration                   1,182                          -                          -                   1,182
Business                 19,502                          -                          -                 19,502
Operation and maintenance                   2,584                          -                          -                   2,584
Pupil transportation                 65,200                          -                          -                 65,200
Central services                 11,242                          -                          -                 11,242

Operation of non-instructional
Food service operation            1,396,325                          -                          -            1,396,325
Community services               478,676                          -                          -               478,676

Extracurricular activities
Sports oriented               140,581                          -                          -               140,581

Capital outlay               103,802                          -               763,373               867,175
Debt service

Principal                          -               151,301                          -               151,301
Interest                          -                 99,571                          -                 99,571

Total expenditures            3,315,472               250,872               769,855            4,336,199

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
Expenditures                 27,241             (161,578)               526,233               391,896

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers-in                 70,000               161,578                          -               231,578
Operating transfers-out               (23,648)                          -                          -               (23,648)

Total other financing sources (uses)                 46,352               161,578                          -               207,930

 Net change in fund balances                 73,593                          -               526,233               599,826

Fund balances, beginning of year, as restated               595,592                          -               456,880            1,052,472

Decrease in reserve for inventory                 (2,728)                          -                          -                 (2,728)

Fund balances, end of year  $           666,457  $                      -  $           983,113  $        1,649,570
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 Uniform  Public
 Food  Sanford /  School  Adult  Support

 Service  Kraley Art  Supplies  Education  Rotary  Services

Assets

Equity in pooled cash  $        43,942  $             239  $        11,147  $          8,362  $        81,287  $      141,001

Receivables, net of allowance

Accounts and other            22,691                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Due from other governments                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Inventories and supplies            37,638                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Total assets  $      104,271  $             239  $        11,147  $          8,362  $        81,287  $      141,001

Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities

Accounts and contracts payable  $             420  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $             987

Accrued salaries, wages and benefits            68,301                      -                      -              1,487                      -                      -

Due to other governments            20,248                      -                      -                 448                      -                      -

Interfund payable                      -                      -                      -            15,000                      -                      -

Deferred revenue

Taxes                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Total liabilities            88,969                      -                      -            16,935                      -                 987

Fund balances

Reserved for inventories            37,638                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Reserved for encumbrances              8,672                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Unreserved          (31,008)                 239            11,147            (8,573)            81,287          140,014

Total fund balances            15,302                 239            11,147            (8,573)            81,287          140,014

Total liabilities and fund balances  $      104,271  $             239  $        11,147  $          8,362  $        81,287  $      141,001
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 Data Schoolnet
 Other  Communication  Auxiliary  Education  Data Professional  Ohio
 Grants  Support  Athletic  Services  M.I.S.  Communication Development  Reads

 $        18,118  $               8,591  $        99,409  $        30,415  $        18,144  $             13,036  $          7,592  $          5,865

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

 $        18,118  $               8,591  $        99,409  $        30,415  $        18,144  $             13,036  $          7,592  $          5,865

 $                  -  $                      -  $        11,482  $             140  $                  -  $                      -  $             125  $                  -

                     -                          -                      -            12,384                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -              2,643                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -            11,482            15,167                      -                          -                 125                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                 160                      -                          -              3,775              5,834

           18,118                   8,591            87,927            15,088            18,144                 13,036              3,692                   31

           18,118                   8,591            87,927            15,248            18,144                 13,036              7,467              5,865

 $        18,118  $               8,591  $        99,409  $        30,415  $        18,144  $             13,036  $          7,592  $          5,865

(CONTINUED)



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET – NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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 Summer  Parent Miscellaneous  Adult
 School  Mentor  Alternative State  Basic  Eisenhower
 Subsidy  Program  Education Grants  Education  Math

Assets

Equity in pooled cash  $                  -  $          3,656  $        30,269  $        21,831  $        11,839  $          7,707

Receivables, net of allowance

Accounts and other                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Due from other governments                      -                      -                      -                      -              8,906              1,474

Inventories and supplies                      -

Total assets  $                  -  $          3,656  $        30,269  $        21,831  $        20,745  $          9,181

Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities

Accounts and contracts payable  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -

Accrued salaries, wages and benefits                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Due to other governments                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Interfund payable                      -                      -                      -                      -            17,702              1,474

Deferred revenue

Taxes                      -                      -                      -                      -              8,906              1,474

Total liabilities                      -                      -                      -                      -            26,608              2,948

Fund balances

Reserved for inventories                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Reserved for encumbrances                      -                      -            10,079                      -                      -                      -

Unreserved                      -              3,656            20,190            21,831            (5,863)              6,233

Total fund balances                      -              3,656            30,269            21,831            (5,863)              6,233

Total liabilities and fund balances  $                  -  $          3,656  $        30,269  $        21,831  $        20,745  $          9,181
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 Total
 Drug  Miscellaneous  Non-Major
 Free  Classroom  Federal  Special Revenue

 Title VIB  Title 1  Title 6  Schools  Preschool  Reduction  Grants  Funds

 $      126,165  $        45,461  $        29,443  $        19,096  $          2,402  $             115  $             774  $      785,906

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -            22,691

                     -                      -                      -            10,161                      -                      -                      -            20,541

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -            37,638

 $      126,165  $        45,461  $        29,443  $        29,257  $          2,402  $             115  $             774  $      866,776

 $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $        13,154

             7,672              3,616                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -            93,460

             1,097              4,391                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -            28,827

                     -                      -                      -            10,161                      -                      -                      -            44,337

                     -                      -                      -            10,161                      -                      -                      -            20,541

             8,769              8,007                      -            20,322                      -                      -                      -          200,319

           37,638

           80,329                      -              1,104                      -                      -                      -                      -          109,953

           37,067            37,454            28,339              8,935              2,402                 115                 774          518,866

         117,396            37,454            29,443              8,935              2,402                 115                 774          666,457

 $      126,165  $        45,461  $        29,443  $        29,257  $          2,402  $             115  $             774  $      866,776
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 Uniform  Public
 Food  Sanford /  School  Adult  Support

 Service  Kraley Art  Supplies  Education  Rotary  Services

Revenues

Tuition and fees  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $        33,223  $                  -  $                  -

Interest                 340                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Intergovernmental          360,519                      -                      -                      -                      -          225,108

Charges for services          941,234                      -            11,462                      -            52,881                      -

Extracurricular                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Other              3,064                      -                      -                      -              8,469            29,593

Total revenues       1,305,157                      -            11,462            33,223            61,350          254,701

Expenditures

Current

Instruction

Regular                      -                      -              8,174                      -              1,818          240,954

Special                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Vocational                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Adult/continuing                      -                      -                      -            41,427                      -                      -

Supporting services

Pupil                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Instructional staff                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                 133

Administration                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                 885

Business                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Operation and maintenance                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Pupil transportation                      -                      -                      -                      -            65,200                      -

Central services                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Operation of non-instructional services

Food service operations       1,396,325                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Community service                      -                      -                      -                      -                 150                      -

Extracurricular activities

Sports oriented                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Capital outlay                 725                      -                      -                 345                      -              3,300

Total expenditures       1,397,050                      -              8,174            41,772            67,168          245,272

Excess revenues over

expenditures          (91,893)                      -              3,288            (8,549)            (5,818)              9,429

Other financing sources (uses)

Operating transfers-in            55,000                      -                      -                      -            15,000                      -

Operating transfers-out                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -          (23,648)

Total other financing sources (uses)            55,000                      -                      -                      -            15,000          (23,648)

Excess (deficiency) of

expenditures and other sources          (36,893)                      -              3,288            (8,549)              9,182          (14,219)

Fund balances, beginning of year            52,195                 239              7,859                 (24)            72,105          154,233

Fund balances, end of year  $        15,302  $             239  $        11,147  $        (8,573)  $        81,287  $      140,014
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 Data Schoolnet
 Other  Communication  Auxiliary  Education  Data Professional  Ohio
 Grants  Support  Athletic  Services  M.I.S.  Communication Development  Reads

 $                  -  $                      -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                      -  $                  -  $                  -

                     -                          -                      -                 617                      -                          -                      -                      -

           17,285                 31,500                      -          411,055            17,410                          -              7,592            72,000

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -          147,471                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

             1,000                          -            41,911                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

           18,285                 31,500          189,382          411,672            17,410                          -              7,592            72,000

           28,020                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -            93,260

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                 15,377              4,125                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -            11,242                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -          415,860                      -                          -                      -              7,500

                     -                          -          140,581                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                 22,909            25,723              1,832                      -                 32,660                      -              1,115

           28,020                 22,909          166,304          417,692            11,242                 48,037              4,125          101,875

           (9,735)                   8,591            23,078            (6,020)              6,168               (48,037)              3,467          (29,875)

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

                     -                          -                      -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -

           (9,735)                   8,591            23,078            (6,020)              6,168               (48,037)              3,467          (29,875)

           27,853                          -            64,849            21,268            11,976                 61,073              4,000            35,740

 $        18,118  $               8,591  $        87,927  $        15,248  $        18,144  $             13,036  $          7,467  $          5,865

(CONTINUED)
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 Summer  Parent Miscellaneous  Adult
 School  Mentor  Alternative State  Basic  Eisenhower
 Subsidy  Program  Education Grants  Education  Math

Revenues

Tuition and fees  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -

Interest                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Intergovernmental              9,412            25,000          135,818              4,892            28,877            18,138

Charges for services                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Extracurricular                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Other                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Total revenues              9,412            25,000          135,818              4,892            28,877            18,138

Expenditures

Current

Instruction

Regular                      -                      -          105,549              8,017                      -                      -

Special                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Vocational                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Adult/continuing                      -                      -                      -                      -            22,376            28,410

Supporting services

Pupil                      -            22,133                      -                      -            10,268                      -

Instructional staff                      -                      -                      -                      -              3,840                      -

Administration                      -                 297                      -                      -                      -                      -

Business                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Operation and maintenance                      -                      -                      -                      -              2,584                      -

Pupil transportation                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Central service                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Operation of non-instructional services

Food service operations                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Community service              9,412                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Extracurricular activities

Sports oriented                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Capital outlay                      -              2,320                      -              3,535              1,189                      -

Total expenditures              9,412            24,750          105,549            11,552            40,257            28,410

Excess revenues over

expenditures                      -                 250            30,269            (6,660)          (11,380)          (10,272)

Other financing sources (uses)

Operating transfers-in                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Operating transfers-out                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Total other financing sources (uses)                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -

Excess (deficiency) of

expenditures and other sources                      -                 250            30,269            (6,660)          (11,380)          (10,272)

Fund balances, beginning of year                      -              3,406                      -            28,491              5,517            16,505

Fund balances, end of year  $                  -  $          3,656  $        30,269  $        21,831  $        (5,863)  $          6,233
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 Total
 Drug Miscellaneous  Non-Major
 Free  Classroom  Federal  Special Revenue

 Title VIB  Title 1  Title 6  Schools  Preschool  Reduction  Grants  Funds

 $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $                  -  $        33,223

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                 957

         327,016          198,667            28,610              8,447            21,825            70,935            51,342       2,071,448

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -       1,005,577

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -          147,471

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -            84,037

         327,016          198,667            28,610              8,447            21,825            70,935            51,342       3,342,713

                     -                      -                      -            10,201                      -            70,820                      -          566,813

         186,868          130,749                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -          317,617

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -            44,000            44,000

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -            92,213

           15,784                      -                      -              4,124            19,453                      -                      -            71,762

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -              3,973

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -              1,182

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -            19,502

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -              2,584

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -            65,200

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -            11,242

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -       1,396,325

           19,073            26,297                 384                      -                      -                      -                      -          478,676

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -          140,581

                     -                      -              1,581                      -                      -                      -              6,568          103,802

         221,725          157,046              1,965            14,325            19,453            70,820            50,568       3,315,472

         105,291            41,621            26,645            (5,878)              2,372                 115                 774            27,241

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -            70,000

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -          (23,648)

                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -            46,352

         105,291            41,621            26,645            (5,878)              2,372                 115                 774            73,593

           12,105            (4,167)              2,798            14,813                   30                      -                      -          592,864

 $      117,396  $        37,454  $        29,443  $          8,935  $          2,402  $             115  $             774  $      666,457
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 Total

 Video  Non-Major

 Permanent  Distance  Capital Projects

 Improvements  Learning  Funds

Assets

Equity in pooled cash  $        773,622  $           23,154  $        796,776

Receivables, net of allowance

Taxes, current         1,058,276                          -         1,058,276

Taxes, delinquent               33,096                          -               33,096

Total assets  $     1,864,994  $           23,154  $     1,888,148

Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities

Accounts and contracts payable  $             2,219  $                   68  $             2,287

Deferred revenue

Taxes             902,748                          -             902,748

Total liabilities             904,967                       68             905,035

Fund balances

Reserved for property taxes             188,624                          -             188,624

Reserved for encumbrances             277,690                     582             278,272

Unreserved             493,713               22,504             516,217

Total fund balances             960,027               23,086             983,113

Total liabilities and fund balances  $     1,864,994  $           23,154  $     1,888,148
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 Total

 Video  Non-Major

 Permanent  Distance  Capital Projects

 Improvements  Learning  Funds

Revenues

Taxes  $     1,158,664  $                      -  $     1,158,664

Interest                 3,704                          -                 3,704

Intergovernmental             125,020                 8,700             133,720

Total revenues         1,287,388                 8,700         1,296,088

Expenditures

Current

Instruction

Regular                          -                 6,482                 6,482

Capital outlay             763,373                          -             763,373

Total expenditures             763,373                 6,482             769,855

Excess revenues over

expenditures             524,015                 2,218             526,233

Fund balances, beginning of year             436,012               20,868             456,880

Fund balances, end of year  $        960,027  $           23,086  $        983,113
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
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BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

GENERAL FUND
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Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Taxes  $      25,390,000  $      25,390,000  $      26,023,195  $           633,195
Tuition and fees               303,000               303,000               382,047                 79,047
Interest               600,000               600,000               551,861               (48,139)
Property rentals                   1,000                   1,000                   6,156                   5,156
Intergovernmental          10,320,000          10,320,000          10,741,879               421,879
Other               261,000               257,500               294,930                 37,430

Total revenues          36,875,000          36,871,500          38,000,068            1,128,568

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Regular

Salaries          14,342,300          14,232,593          14,222,351                 10,242
Benefits            4,046,000            4,199,900            4,167,700                 32,200
Purchased services               195,985               199,943               168,815                 31,128
Materials and supplies               454,226               417,328               394,312                 23,016
Other                 38,000                 38,000                 33,979                   4,021

Total regular          19,076,511          19,087,764          18,987,157               100,607

Special
Salaries            2,975,200            2,967,500            2,963,998                   3,502
Benefits               839,000               870,100               862,051                   8,049
Purchased services                   3,800                   7,594                   2,458                   5,136
Materials and supplies                 47,940                 52,118                 40,134                 11,984

Total special            3,865,940            3,897,312            3,868,641                 28,671

Vocational
Salaries               473,000               475,400               475,365                        35
Benefits               133,000               140,500               139,300                   1,200
Purchased services                   2,200                   1,802                   1,282                      520
Materials and supplies                 11,723                 10,676                 10,046                      630

Total vocational               619,923               628,378               625,993                   2,385

Adult/continuing
Salaries                 11,400                 11,400                 11,398                          2
Benefits                   3,000                   3,200                   3,175                        25
Purchased services                 37,700                 37,700                 33,963                   3,737

Total adult/continuing                 52,100                 52,300                 48,536                   3,764

Other instruction
Salaries                 63,400                 63,400                 53,390                 10,010
Benefits                 18,000                 15,900                 15,568                      332
Purchased services               415,650               675,149               487,884               187,265

Total other instruction               497,050               754,449               556,842               197,607

Total instruction          24,111,524          24,420,203          24,087,169               333,034

(CONTINUED)
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Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Supporting services
Pupil

Salaries            1,914,600            1,905,200            1,884,094                 21,106
Benefits               540,000               560,000               554,539                   5,461
Purchased services               285,250               317,776               299,471                 18,305
Materials and supplies                 30,960                 91,785                 77,913                 13,872
Other                      972                      972                          -                      972

Total pupil            2,771,782            2,875,733            2,816,017                 59,716

Instructional staff
Salaries            1,035,600               962,024               951,509                 10,515
Benefits               292,000               267,200               264,386                   2,814
Purchased services               167,000               151,390               133,834                 17,556
Materials and supplies               141,099               155,774               139,504                 16,270
Other                   3,205                   2,957                   2,957                          -

Total instructional staff            1,638,904            1,539,345            1,492,190                 47,155

Board of education
Salaries                 18,000                 14,000                 10,800                   3,200
Benefits                   5,000                   1,500                   1,514                      (14)
Purchased services               195,000               184,133               172,063                 12,070
Materials and supplies                      310                      310                          -
Other                   3,787                   3,787                          -

Total board of education               218,000               203,730               188,474                 15,256

Administration
Salaries            2,091,100            2,046,700            2,043,970                   2,730
Benefits               590,000               600,000               594,202                   5,798
Purchased services               102,924                 87,166                 72,695                 14,471
Materials and supplies                 37,632                 28,629                 24,993                   3,636
Other                 10,000                 10,165                 10,165                          -

Total administration            2,831,656            2,772,660            2,746,025                 26,635

Fiscal services
Salaries               230,200               253,200               252,958                      242
Benefits                 65,000                 91,339                 89,605                   1,734
Purchased services                 20,500                 27,189                 19,741                   7,448
Materials and supplies                   6,300                   7,840                   6,579                   1,261
Other               422,703               494,273               488,164                   6,109

Total fiscal services               744,703               873,841               857,047                 16,794

Business
Salaries                 66,200                 66,200                 66,166                        34
Benefits                 19,000                 19,600                 19,389                      211
Purchased services               125,967               144,607               143,510                   1,097

Total business               211,167               230,407               229,065                   1,342

Operation and maintenance
Salaries            1,831,400            1,780,800            1,778,713                   2,087
Benefits               517,000               508,900               503,676                   5,224
Purchased services            1,129,625            1,047,493               943,796               103,697
Materials and supplies               163,965               135,062               123,803                 11,259
Other                 29,500                 25,649                 25,193                      456

Total operation and maintenance            3,671,490            3,497,904            3,375,181               122,723

(CONTINUED)
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Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Pupil transportation
Salaries               794,000               843,600               836,389                   7,211
Benefits               224,000               240,100               237,504                   2,596
Purchased services               337,795               347,534               335,114                 12,420
Materials and supplies               197,720               136,393               125,405                 10,988

Total pupil transportation            1,553,515            1,567,627            1,534,412                 33,215

Central services
Salaries               345,500               332,200               331,881                      319
Benefits                 97,000               113,200               112,076                   1,124
Purchased services               361,445               266,231               261,637                   4,594
Materials and supplies               121,872                 95,050                 84,916                 10,134

Total central services               925,817               806,681               790,510                 16,171

Total supporting services          14,567,034          14,367,928          14,028,921               339,007

Operation of non-instructional
Food service operation

Salaries                 25,700                 28,200                 28,103                        97
Benefits                   7,000                          -                          -                          -

Total food service operation                 32,700                 28,200                 28,103                        97

Community services
Purchased services                 27,242                 27,242                 20,905                   6,337

Total community services                 27,242                 27,242                 20,905                   6,337

Total operation of non-instructional                 59,942                 55,442                 49,008                   6,434

Extracurricular activities
Academic and subject oriented

Salaries               169,100               125,500               122,349                   3,151
Benefits                 48,000                 35,800                 35,431                      369

Total academic and subject oriented               217,100               161,300               157,780                   3,520

Sports oriented
Salaries               542,800               478,100               465,017                 13,083
Benefits               153,000               135,500               134,156                   1,344
Purchased services                 21,000                 18,015                 13,245                   4,770

Total sports oriented               716,800               631,615               612,418                 19,197

Total extracurricular activities               933,900               792,915               770,198                 22,717

Capital outlay                 41,102                 65,741                 41,478                 24,263

Total expenditures          39,713,502          39,702,229          38,976,774               725,455

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures          (2,838,502)          (2,830,729)             (976,706)            1,854,023

(CONTINUED)



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

GENERAL FUND

(CONCLUDED)

72

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers-in                          -                          -                 23,648                 23,648
Advances-in                 50,000               503,442               503,442                          -
Refund prior year expenditure                          -                          -                      308                      308
Advances-out                          -             (506,890)             (506,890)                          -
Operating transfers-out             (237,726)             (231,578)             (231,578)                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)             (187,726)             (235,026)             (211,070)                 23,956

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)          (3,026,228)          (3,065,755)          (1,187,776)            1,877,979

Fund balances, beginning of year          11,851,960          11,851,960          11,851,960                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated               421,261               421,261               421,261                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $        9,246,993  $        9,207,466  $      11,085,445  $        1,877,979



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

FOOD SERVICE FUND

73

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Sales  $        1,044,816  $           944,064  $           947,064  $               3,000
Interest                   3,752                      336                      339                          3
Intergovernmental               270,132               302,080               302,080                          -
Other                   6,300                   3,064                   3,064                          -

Total  revenues            1,325,000            1,249,544            1,252,547                   3,003

Expenditures
Current

Food service operations
Salaries and wages               456,472               456,097               446,956                   9,141
Fringe benefits               187,000               196,750               200,436                 (3,686)
Purchased services               683,913               689,412               687,309                   2,103
Materials and supplies                   5,500                   4,625                   4,065                      560

Total food service operations            1,332,885            1,346,884            1,338,766                   8,118

Capital outlay                   2,500                   1,000                      725                      275

Total expenditures            1,335,385            1,347,884            1,339,491                   8,393

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures               (10,385)               (98,340)               (86,944)                 11,396

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers-in                          -                 55,000                 55,000                          -
Advances-out                          -               (25,000)               (25,000)                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)                          -                 30,000                 30,000                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)               (10,385)               (68,340)               (56,944)                 11,396

Fund balances, beginning of year                 88,669                 88,669                 88,669                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                   3,125                   3,125                   3,125                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $             81,409  $             23,454  $             34,850  $             11,396



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

UNIFORM SCHOOL SUPPLIES FUND

74

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Sales  $             13,800  $             11,462  $             11,462  $                      -

Total revenues                 13,800                 11,462                 11,462                          -

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Materials and supplies                 12,690                 12,690                   8,780                   3,910

Total Instruction                 12,690                 12,690                   8,780                   3,910

Total expenditures                 12,690                 12,690                   8,780                   3,910

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                   1,110                 (1,228)                   2,682                   3,910

Fund balances, beginning of year                   8,465                   8,465                   8,465                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $               9,575  $               7,237  $             11,147  $               3,910



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

ADULT EDUCATION FUND

75

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Tuition and fees  $             55,000  $             32,046  $             33,223  $               1,177
Interest                          -                          -                          -                          -
Intergovernmental                          -                          -                          -                          -
Other                          -                          -                          -                          -

Total revenues                 55,000                 32,046                 33,223                   1,177

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Salaries and wages                 13,733                   7,733                   7,599                      134
Fringe benefits                   4,008                          -                          -                          -
Purchased services                 35,389                 34,744                 31,712                   3,032
Materials and supplies                   1,655                   1,759                   1,326                      433
Other                   1,100                      813                      604                      209

Total instruction                 55,885                 45,049                 41,241                   3,808

Capital outlay                      563                      345                      345                          -

Total expenditures                 56,448                 45,394                 41,586                   3,808

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                 (1,448)               (13,348)                 (8,363)                   4,985

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers-in                          -                          -                          -                          -
Advances-in                          -                 15,000                 15,000                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)                          -                 15,000                 15,000                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                 (1,448)                   1,652                   6,637                   4,985

Fund balances, beginning of year                   1,698                   1,698                   1,698                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                        27                        27                        27                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $                  277  $               3,377  $               8,362  $               4,985



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

ROTARY FUND

76

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Charges for services                 75,000  $             52,273  $             52,881  $                  608
Other                   6,237                   7,781                   8,469                      688

Total revenues                 81,237                 60,054                 61,350                   1,296

Expenditures
Current

Instructional support services
Purchased services                   2,500                   1,818                   1,818                          -
Other                      259                      259                      150                      109

Total instructional support services                   2,759                   2,077                   1,968                      109

Transportation services
Purchased services                 70,000                 65,200                 65,200                          -

Total transportation services                 70,000                 65,200                 65,200                          -

Total expenditures                 72,759                 67,277                 67,168                      109

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                   8,478                 (7,223)                 (5,818)                   1,405

Other financing sources (uses)

Operating transfers-in                 15,000                 15,000                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)                          -                 15,000                 15,000                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                   8,478                   7,777                   9,182                   1,405

Fund balances, beginning of year                 72,105                 72,105                 72,105                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $             80,583  $             79,882  $             81,287  $               1,405



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

PUBLIC SUPPORT SERVICES FUND

77

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $           381,900  $           224,332  $           225,108  $                  776
Other                 19,525                 28,706                 29,593                      887

Total revenues               401,425               253,038               254,701                   1,663

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Regular

Purchased services               201,604               125,135               116,803                   8,332
Materials and supplies               125,400               126,058               106,604                 19,454
Other                 10,700                 23,357                 17,219                   6,138

Total regular               337,704               274,550               240,626                 33,924

Total instruction               337,704               274,550               240,626                 33,924

Supporting services
Instructional staff

Materials and supplies                   1,000                      133                      133                          -

Total instructional staff                   1,000                      133                      133                          -

Administration
Materials and supplies                   3,000                   3,052                      885                   2,167

Total administration                   3,000                   3,052                      885                   2,167

Total supporting services                   4,000                   3,185                   1,018                   2,167

Capital outlay                 42,500                   6,100                   3,300                   2,800

Total expenditures               384,204               283,835               244,944                 38,891

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                 17,221               (30,797)                   9,757                 40,554

Other financing sources (uses)
Advances-out                      (20)                      (20)                      (20)                          -
Operating transfers-out                          -               (23,648)               (23,648)                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)                      (20)               (23,668)               (23,668)                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                 17,201               (54,465)               (13,911)                 40,554

Fund balances, beginning of year               134,549               134,549               134,549                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                 19,817                 19,817                 19,817                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $           171,567  $             99,901  $           140,455  $             40,554



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

OTHER GRANTS FUND

78

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             10,000  $             16,130  $             16,785  $                  655
Other                          -                   1,000                   1,000                          -

Total revenues                 10,000                 17,130                 17,785                      655

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Regular

Salaries                   6,100                   8,050                   6,684                   1,366
Benefits                          -                          -                        55                      (55)
Purchased services                   9,070                   6,950                   6,414                      536
Materials and supplies                   1,215                   4,580                   2,949                   1,631
Other                 11,718                 17,768                 12,168                   5,600

Total regular                 28,103                 37,348                 28,270                   9,078

Total instruction                 28,103                 37,348                 28,270                   9,078

Total expenditures                 28,103                 37,348                 28,270                   9,078

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures               (18,103)               (20,218)               (10,485)                   9,733

Other financing sources (uses)
Refund prior year expenditure                          -                      500                      500                          -
Advances-out                    (315)                    (315)                    (315)                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)                    (315)                      185                      185                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)               (18,418)               (20,033)               (10,300)                   9,733

Fund balances, beginning of year                 28,418                 28,418                 28,418                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $             10,000  $               8,385  $             18,118  $               9,733



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

DATA COMMUNICATION SUPPORT FUND

79

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             31,500  $             31,500  $             31,500  $                      -

Total revenues                 31,500                 31,500                 31,500                          -

Expenditures
Capital outlay                 31,500                 31,500                 22,909                   8,591

Total expenditures                 31,500                 31,500                 22,909                   8,591

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                          -                          -                   8,591                   8,591

Fund balances, beginning of year                          -                          -                          -                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $                      -  $                      -  $               8,591  $               8,591



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

ATHLETIC FUND

80

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Extracurricular  $           151,600  $           147,471  $           147,471  $                      -
Other                 30,400                 38,936                 41,911                   2,975

Total revenues               182,000               186,407               189,382                   2,975

Expenditures
Current

Extracurricular activities
Sports oriented

Purchased services                 47,600                 47,732                 34,361                 13,371
Materials and supplies                 34,700                 40,864                 26,601                 14,263
Other                 79,300               102,114                 73,465                 28,649

Total sports oriented               161,600               190,710               134,427                 56,283

Total extracurricular activities               161,600               190,710               134,427                 56,283

Capital outlay                 43,300                 46,109                 25,723                 20,386

Total expenditures               204,900               236,819               160,150                 76,669

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures               (22,900)               (50,412)                 29,232                 79,644

Fund balances, beginning of year                 61,134                 61,134                 61,134                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                   4,174                   4,174                   4,174                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $             42,408  $             14,896  $             94,540  $             79,644



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

AUXILIARY SERVICE FUND

81

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Interest  $               1,700  $                  615  $                  617  $                      2
Intergovernmental               435,000               411,055               411,055                          -

Total revenues               436,700               411,670               411,672                          2

Expenditures
Current

Operation of non-instructional
Community services

Salaries               376,000                 99,934                 87,550                 12,384
Benefits                          -                 26,187                 26,187                          -
Purchased services                          -               154,125               141,721                 12,404
Materials and supplies                 20,000               126,787               121,507                   5,280
Other                          -                 16,465                 16,465                          -

Total community services               396,000               423,498               393,430                 30,068

Total operation of non-instructional               396,000               423,498               393,430                 30,068

Capital outlay                          -                   1,832                   1,832                          -

Total expenditures               396,000               425,330               395,262                 30,068

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                 40,700               (13,660)                 16,410                 30,070

Other financing sources (uses)
Refund prior year receipt                          -               (29,860)               (29,860)                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)                          -               (29,860)               (29,860)                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                 40,700               (43,520)               (13,450)                 30,070

Fund balances, beginning of year                          -                          -                          -                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                 43,565                 43,565                 43,565                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $             84,265  $                    45  $             30,115  $             30,070



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

GOALS 2000 FUND

82

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             24,000  $             24,000  $             24,000  $                      -

Total revenues                 24,000                 24,000                 24,000                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                 24,000                 24,000                 24,000                          -

Other financing sources (uses)
Advances-out               (24,000)               (24,000)               (24,000)                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)               (24,000)               (24,000)               (24,000)                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, beginning of year                          -                          -                          -                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $                      -  $                      -  $                      -  $                      -



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

EDUCATION M.I.S. FUND

83

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             17,410  $             17,410  $             17,410  $                      -

Total revenues                 17,410                 17,410                 17,410                          -

Expenditures
Current

Supporting services
Central services

Purchased services                 11,976                 29,386                 11,242                 18,144

Total central services                 11,976                 29,386                 11,242                 18,144

Total supporting services                 11,976                 29,386                 11,242                 18,144

Total expenditures                 11,976                 29,386                 11,242                 18,144

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                   5,434               (11,976)                   6,168                 18,144

Fund balances, beginning of year                 11,976                 11,976                 11,976                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $             17,410  $                      -  $             18,144  $             18,144



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

DATA COMMUNICATION FUND

84

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Expenditures
Current

Supporting services
Business

Purchased services  $             15,377  $             15,377  $             15,377  $                      -

Total business                 15,377                 15,377                 15,377                          -

Total supporting services                 15,377                 15,377                 15,377                          -

Capital outlay                 45,696                 45,696                 32,660                 13,036

Total expenditures                 61,073                 61,073                 48,037                 13,036

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures               (61,073)               (61,073)               (48,037)                 13,036

Fund balances, beginning of year                 61,073                 61,073                 61,073                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $                      -  $                      -  $             13,036  $             13,036



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

SCHOOLNET FUND

85

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $               4,142  $               4,142  $               7,592  $               3,450

Total revenues                   4,142                   4,142                   7,592                   3,450

Expenditures
Current

Supporting services
Business

Purchased services                   4,000                   8,142                   7,900                      242

Total business                   4,000                   8,142                   7,900                      242

Total supporting services                   4,000                   8,142                   7,900                      242

Total expenditures                   4,000                   8,142                   7,900                      242

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                      142                 (4,000)                    (308)                   3,692

Fund balances, beginning of year                   4,000                   4,000                   4,000                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $               4,142  $                      -  $               3,692  $               3,692



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

OHIO READS FUND

86

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             72,000  $             72,000  $             72,000  $                      -

Total revenues                 72,000                 72,000                 72,000                          -

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Regular

Salaries                          -                 29,652                 29,650                          2
Benefits                          -                   5,004                   5,004                          -
Purchased services                          -                 23,182                 22,770                      412
Materials and supplies                          -                 39,054                 38,890                      164
Other                          -                          -                    (847)                      847

Total regular                          -                 96,892                 95,467                   1,425

Total instruction                          -                 96,892                 95,467                   1,425

Operation of non-instructional
Community services

Salaries                          -                   6,580                   6,580                          -
Purchased services                          -                      300                      300                          -
Materials and supplies                          -                      620                      620                          -

Total community services                          -                   7,500                   7,500                          -

Total operation of non-instructional                          -                   7,500                   7,500                          -

Capital outlay                          -                   1,245                   1,168                        77

Total expenditures                          -               105,637               104,135                   1,502

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                 72,000               (33,637)               (32,135)                   1,502

Other financing sources (uses)
Refund prior year receipt                 (2,053)                 (2,103)                 (3,574)                 (1,471)

Total other financing sources (uses)                 (2,053)                 (2,103)                 (3,574)                 (1,471)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                 69,947               (35,740)               (35,709)                        31

Fund balances, beginning of year                   2,053                   2,053                   2,053                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                 33,687                 33,687                 33,687                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $           105,687  $                      -  $                    31  $                    31



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

SUMMER SCHOOL SUBSIDY FUND

87

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $               9,412  $               9,412  $               9,412  $                      -

Total revenues                   9,412                   9,412                   9,412                          -

Expenditures
Current

Operation of non-instructional
Community services

Materials and supplies                          -                   9,412                   9,412                          -

Total community services                          -                   9,412                   9,412                          -

Total operation of non-instructional                          -                   9,412                   9,412                          -

Total expenditures                          -                   9,412                   9,412                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                   9,412                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, beginning of year                          -                          -                          -                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $               9,412  $                      -  $                      -  $                      -



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

MENTORING FUND

88

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             25,000  $             25,000  $             25,000  $                      -

Total revenues                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                          -

Expenditures
Current

Supporting services
Pupil

Salaries                 12,193                 12,193                 12,240                      (47)
Benefits                   7,170                   7,170                   7,170                          -
Purchased services                      278                      778                      551                      227
Materials and supplies                   4,428                   5,314                   2,172                   3,142

Total pupil                 24,069                 25,455                 22,133                   3,322

Administration
Salaries                      250                      250                        28                      222
Benefits                        92                        92                      269                    (177)

Total administration                      342                      342                      297                        45

Total supporting services                 24,411                 25,797                 22,430                   3,367

Capital outlay                      289                   2,609                   2,319                      290

Total expenditures                 24,700                 28,406                 24,749                   3,657

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                      300                 (3,406)                      251                   3,657

Fund balances, beginning of year                      200                      200                      200                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                   3,206                   3,206                   3,206                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $               3,706  $                      -  $               3,657  $               3,657



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION FUND

89

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $           135,818  $           135,818  $           135,818  $                      -

Total revenues               135,818               135,818               135,818                          -

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Regular

Purchased services               135,818               135,818               115,628                 20,190

Total regular               135,818               135,818               115,628                 20,190

Total instruction               135,818               135,818               115,628                 20,190

Total expenditures               135,818               135,818               115,628                 20,190

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                          -                          -                 20,190                 20,190

Fund balances, beginning of year                          -                          -                          -                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $                      -  $                      -  $             20,190  $             20,190



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

SAFE SCHOOL HOTLINE FUND

90

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $               4,892  $               4,892  $               4,892  $                      -

Total revenues                   4,892                   4,892                   4,892                          -

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Regular

Purchased services                 15,625                 20,517                   8,017                 12,500
Materials and supplies                   6,609                 11,395                   4,779                   6,616

Total regular                 22,234                 31,912                 12,796                 19,116

Total instruction                 22,234                 31,912                 12,796                 19,116

Capital outlay                   6,250                   6,250                   3,535                   2,715

Total expenditures                 28,484                 38,162                 16,331                 21,831

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures               (23,592)               (33,270)               (11,439)                 21,831

Fund balances, beginning of year                 28,484                 28,484                 28,484                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                   4,786                   4,786                   4,786                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $               9,678  $                      -  $             21,831  $             21,831



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

ADULT BASIC EDUCATION FUND

91

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             38,783  $             38,783  $             28,877  $             (9,906)

Total revenues                 38,783                 38,783                 28,877                 (9,906)

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Adult/continuing

Salaries                 12,240                 12,240                 11,628                      612
Benefits                   2,014                   2,014                   1,912                      102
Purchased services                   2,374                   2,374                      585                   1,789
Materials and supplies                   4,517                   8,363                   8,251                      112

Total adult/continuing                 21,145                 24,991                 22,376                   2,615

Total instruction                 21,145                 24,991                 22,376                   2,615

Supporting services
Pupil

Salaries                 14,090                 11,374                 10,170                   1,204
Benefits                      263                      263                      263                          -

Total pupil                 14,353                 11,637                 10,433                   1,204

Instructional staff
Salaries                   2,210                   2,210                   2,210                          -
Benefits                   1,844                   1,844                   1,630                      214

Total instructional staff                   4,054                   4,054                   3,840                      214

Operation and maintenance
Salaries                   1,600                   1,600                   1,600                          -
Benefits                      264                      983                      983                          -

Total operation and maintenance                   1,864                   2,583                   2,583                          -

Total supporting services                 20,271                 18,274                 16,856                   1,418

Capital outlay                   1,200                   1,200                   1,190                        10

Total expenditures                 42,616                 44,465                 40,422                   4,043

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                 (3,833)                 (5,682)               (11,545)                 (5,863)

Other financing sources (uses)
Advances-in                          -                   7,796                 17,702                   9,906
Advances-out                          -                 (7,796)                          -                   7,796

Total other financing sources (uses)                          -                          -                 17,702                 17,702

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                 (3,833)                 (5,682)                   6,157                 11,839

Fund balances, beginning of year                   3,833                   3,833                   3,833                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                   1,849                   1,849                   1,849                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $               1,849  $                      -  $             11,839  $             11,839



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

EISENHOWER MATH  FUND

92

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             19,243  $             18,138  $             18,138  $                      -

Total revenues                 19,243                 18,138                 18,138                          -

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Adult/continuing

Salaries                   9,648                 22,025                 16,382                   5,643
Benefits                   1,820                   3,935                   3,329                      606
Purchased services                 17,304                   6,446                   5,896                      550
Materials and supplies                   6,976                   3,329                   2,803                      526

Total adult/continuing                 35,748                 35,735                 28,410                   7,325

Total instruction                 35,748                 35,735                 28,410                   7,325

Total expenditures                 35,748                 35,735                 28,410                   7,325

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures               (16,505)               (17,597)               (10,272)                   7,325

Other financing sources (uses)
Advances-in                          -                   1,474                   1,474                          -
Advances-out                 (1,474)                 (1,474)                 (1,474)                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)                 (1,474)                          -                          -                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)               (17,979)               (17,597)               (10,272)                   7,325

Fund balances, beginning of year                 17,979                 17,979                 17,979                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $                      -  $                  382  $               7,707  $               7,325



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

TITLE VIB FUND

93

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $           330,678  $           327,016  $           327,016  $                      -

Total revenues               330,678               327,016               327,016                          -

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Special

Purchased services               466,135               458,909               458,909                          -

Total special               466,135               458,909               458,909                          -

Total instruction               466,135               458,909               458,909                          -

Supporting services
Pupil

Salaries                          -                 14,151                 14,151                          -
Purchased services                   8,011                 38,852                   2,685                 36,167

Total pupil                   8,011                 53,003                 16,836                 36,167

Total supporting services                   8,011                 53,003                 16,836                 36,167

Operation of non-instructional
Community services

Salaries                          -                 22,951                 15,279                   7,672
Benefits                          -                   4,694                   2,697                   1,997

Total community services                          -                 27,645                 17,976                   9,669

Total operation of non-instructional                          -                 27,645                 17,976                   9,669

Total expenditures               474,146               539,557               493,721                 45,836

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures             (143,468)             (212,541)             (166,705)                 45,836

Other financing sources (uses)
Advances-in                          -               327,331               327,331                          -
Advances-out                          -             (327,331)             (327,331)                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)                          -                          -                          -                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)             (143,468)             (212,541)             (166,705)                 45,836

Fund balances, beginning of year               143,467               143,467               143,467                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                 69,074                 69,074                 69,074                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $             69,073  $                      -  $             45,836  $             45,836



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

TITLE 1 FUND

94

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $           195,200  $           198,667  $           198,667  $                      -

Total revenues               195,200               198,667               198,667                          -

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Special

Salaries               145,728               148,792               107,767                 41,025
Benefits                 31,991                 31,991                 25,115                   6,876
Purchased services                      500                      500                      224                      276
Materials and supplies                          -                      500                      433                        67

Total special               178,219               181,783               133,539                 48,244

Total instruction               178,219               181,783               133,539                 48,244

Operation of non-instructional
Community services

Salaries                 17,870                 17,773                 18,549                    (776)
Benefits                   2,481                   2,433                   5,080                 (2,647)
Purchased services                   1,530                   1,578                   1,557                        21
Materials and supplies                   1,504                   1,504                      885                      619

Total community services                 23,385                 23,288                 26,071                 (2,783)

Total operation of non-instructional                 23,385                 23,288                 26,071                 (2,783)

Total expenditures               201,604               205,071               159,610                 45,461

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                 (6,404)                 (6,404)                 39,057                 45,461

Other financing sources (uses)
Advances-in                          -                 74,149                 74,149                          -
Advances-out                          -               (74,149)               (74,149)                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)                          -                          -                          -                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                 (6,404)                 (6,404)                 39,057                 45,461

Fund balances, beginning of year                   6,404                   6,404                   6,404                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $                      -  $                      -  $             45,461  $             45,461



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

TITLE VI FUND

95

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             28,610  $             28,610  $             28,610  $                      -

Total revenues                 28,610                 28,610                 28,610                          -

Expenditures
Current

Operation of non-instructional
Community services

Materials and supplies                   3,688                   2,493                      384                   2,109

Total community services                   3,688                   2,493                      384                   2,109

Total operation of non-instructional                   3,688                   2,493                      384                   2,109

Capital outlay                 27,720                 28,210                   2,685                 25,525

Total expenditures                 31,408                 30,703                   3,069                 27,634

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                 (2,798)                 (2,093)                 25,541                 27,634

Other financing sources (uses)
Refund prior year receipt                          -                    (705)                          -                      705

Total other financing sources (uses)                          -                    (705)                          -                      705

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                 (2,798)                 (2,798)                 25,541                 28,339

Fund balances, beginning of year                   2,798                   2,798                   2,798                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $                      -  $                      -  $             28,339  $             28,339



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

DRUG FREE SCHOOLS FUND

96

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             18,608  $             18,608  $               8,447  $           (10,161)

Total revenues                 18,608                 18,608                   8,447               (10,161)

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Regular

Salaries                   9,835                   9,835                   4,032                   5,803
Benefits                   1,052                   1,052                      663                      389
Purchased services                   6,545                   6,545                   2,386                   4,159
Materials and supplies                   4,767                   4,767                   3,120                   1,647

Total regular                 22,199                 22,199                 10,201                 11,998

Total instruction                 22,199                 22,199                 10,201                 11,998

Supporting services
Pupil

Purchased services                   9,305                   9,305                   2,361                   6,944
Materials and supplies                   1,611                   1,917                   1,763                      154

Total pupil                 10,916                 11,222                   4,124                   7,098

Total supporting services                 10,916                 11,222                   4,124                   7,098

Total expenditures                 33,115                 33,421                 14,325                 19,096

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures               (14,507)               (14,813)                 (5,878)                   8,935

Other financing sources (uses)
Advances-in                          -                          -                 10,161                 10,161

Total other financing sources (uses)                          -                          -                 10,161                 10,161

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)               (14,507)               (14,813)                   4,283                 19,096

Fund balances, beginning of year                 14,507                 14,507                 14,507                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                      306                      306                      306                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $                  306  $                      -  $             19,096  $             19,096



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

PRESCHOOL FUND

97

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             20,754  $             21,825  $             21,825  $                      -

Total revenues                 20,754                 21,825                 21,825                          -

Expenditures
Current

Supporting services
Pupil

Salaries                          -                 17,713                 16,705                   1,008
Benefits                          -                   3,038                   2,748                      290

Total pupil                          -                 20,751                 19,453                   1,298

Total supporting services                          -                 20,751                 19,453                   1,298

Operation of non-instructional
Food service operation

Purchased services                        30                   1,074                          -                   1,074

Total food service operation                        30                   1,074                          -                   1,074

Total operation of non-instructional                        30                   1,074                          -                   1,074

Total expenditures                        30                 21,825                 19,453                   2,372

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                 20,724                          -                   2,372                   2,372

Other financing sources (uses)
Refund prior year receipt                          -                      (30)                          -                        30

Total other financing sources (uses)                          -                      (30)                          -                        30

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                 20,724                      (30)                   2,372                   2,402

Fund balances, beginning of year                        30                        30                        30                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $             20,754  $                      -  $               2,402  $               2,402



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

CLASSROOM REDUCTION FUND

98

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             70,935  $             70,935  $             70,935  $                      -

Total revenues                 70,935                 70,935                 70,935                          -

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Regular

Salaries                 60,000                 60,000                 60,000                          -
Benefits                 10,935                 10,820                 10,820                          -

Total regular                 70,935                 70,820                 70,820                          -

Total instruction                 70,935                 70,820                 70,820                          -

Total expenditures                 70,935                 70,820                 70,820                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                          -                      115                      115                          -

Other financing sources (uses)
Advances-in                          -                 51,073                 51,073                          -
Advances-out                          -               (51,073)               (51,073)                          -
Refund prior year receipt                          -                    (115)                          -                      115

Total other financing sources (uses)                          -                    (115)                          -                      115

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                          -                          -                      115                      115

Fund balances, beginning of year                          -                          -                          -                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $                      -  $                      -  $                  115  $                  115



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

MISCELLANEOUS FEDERAL GRANTS FUND

99

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $             30,000  $             51,342  $             51,342  $                      -

Total revenues                 30,000                 51,342                 51,342                          -

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Vocational

Salaries                   7,000                 15,915                 15,915                          -
Benefits                      980                   2,228                   2,228                          -
Purchased services                 21,520                 25,357                 25,357                          -
Materials and supplies                      500                      500                      500                          -

Total vocational                 30,000                 44,000                 44,000                          -

Total instruction                 30,000                 44,000                 44,000                          -

Capital outlay                   7,342                   6,568                      774

Total expenditures                 30,000                 51,342                 50,568                      774

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                          -                          -                      774                      774

Fund balances, beginning of year                          -                          -                          -                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $                      -  $                      -  $                  774  $                  774



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

DEBT SERVICE FUND

100

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Interest  $                      -  $             89,294  $             89,294  $                      -

Total revenues                          -                 89,294                 89,294                          -

Expenditures
Debt service

Principal               151,301            2,879,301            2,879,301                          -
Interest                 10,225                 99,571                 99,571                          -

Total debt service               161,526            2,978,872            2,978,872                          -

Total expenditures               161,526            2,978,872            2,978,872                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures             (161,526)          (2,889,578)          (2,889,578)                          -

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers-in               161,526               161,578               161,578                          -
Proceeds from sale of notes                          -            2,728,000            2,728,000                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)               161,526            2,889,578            2,889,578                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, beginning of year                          -                          -                          -                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $                      -  $                      -  $                      -  $                      -



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

PERMANENT IMPROVEMENT FUND

101

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Taxes  $        1,032,382  $        1,027,382  $        1,045,989  $             18,607
Interest                 10,000                   3,512                   3,703                      191
Intergovernmental               125,000               127,342               125,020                 (2,322)

Total revenues            1,167,382            1,158,236            1,174,712                 16,476

Expenditures
Capital outlay            1,157,000            1,355,576            1,173,382               182,194

Total expenditures            1,157,000            1,355,576            1,173,382               182,194

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures                 10,382             (197,340)                   1,330               198,670

Other financing sources (uses)
Advances-in                          -                 10,000                 10,000                          -

Total other financing sources (uses)                          -                 10,000                 10,000                          -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)                 10,382             (187,340)                 11,330               198,670

Fund balances, beginning of year               329,962               329,962               329,962                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated               152,421               152,421               152,421                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $           492,765  $           295,043  $           493,713  $           198,670



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

VIDEO DISTANCE LEARNING FUND

102

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Intergovernmental  $               8,700  $               8,700  $               8,700  $                      -

Total revenues                   8,700                   8,700                   8,700                          -

Expenditures
Current

Instruction
Regular

Salaries                 20,868                   9,828                      750                   9,078
Purchased services                          -                 19,240                   6,314                 12,926

Total regular                 20,868                 29,068                   7,064                 22,004

Total instruction                 20,868                 29,068                   7,064                 22,004

Capital outlay                          -                      500                          -                      500

Total expenditures                 20,868                 29,568                   7,064                 22,504

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures               (12,168)               (20,868)                   1,636                 22,504

Fund balances, beginning of year                 20,868                 20,868                 20,868                          -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated                          -                          -                          -                          -

Fund balances, end of year  $               8,700  $                      -  $             22,504  $             22,504
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